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Management Discussion and Analysis & IF

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

As of 31 December 2010, the Group has recorded an
enhanced trade volume and turnover in its steel and iron ore
business than that of last year. With improved profit levels,
the Group managed to swing into profit. The Group recorded
approximately HK$6.08 billion and HK$157 million in sales
and gross profit, an increase of 87% and 60% respectively
compared with the last corresponding year. Profit attributable
to shareholders was approximately HK$549 million.

Steel business

In the first quarter of 2010, the global economy started
to recover gradually and liquidity improved. A solid global
demand for steel had been driving up prices. Demand for
steel has increased further despite policies by the Chinese
government in energy conservation and emission reductions,
as well as production capacity controls in steel. Domestic
demand had also surged because of urbanisation, construction
of high-speed railway and rural policies over home appliances.
In addition, as negotiations of iron ore prices came to a halt,
the traditional annual price fixing mechanism was actually
abolished. The big three mining companies have now
adopted a quarterly price fixing mechanism which boosts
iron ore prices considerably, driving up the production cost
of steel enterprises and therefore steel prices. The Group's
international trading business recorded satisfactory results in
the first quarter.

In April, countries including India, Vietnam and Australia
began to raise their interest rates. In an attempt to keep
inflation under control, China raised the deposit reserve
ratio several times, implemented a series of macroeconomic
austerity measures to cool down the real estate market and
credit growth, and cancelled the export tax rebate for some
of the steel products. These measures led to a sharp fall in
domestic steel trading volume and steel exports, driving up
the inventory level of steel enterprises. Subsequently, the debt
crisis in Europe caused a plunge in the euro, which reduced
the purchasing power in the eurozone and the ability to
exercise contractual obligations. That resulted in a significant
consolidation in the global major steel markets. In mid-July,
following the market risk gradually digested as expected,
the rising trend of steel price was supported due to cyclical
price effect and the rising price of iron ore and coal. Globally,
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 [ 57

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel business (continued)

Steel production capacity reached a historic high of 1.4
billion tonnes in 2010, up 15% year-on-year. In China, steel
exports surpassed 42 million tonnes, up 73% year-on-year.
Benefiting from the improved economic environment and the
steady execution of the long-term iron-ore contract signed
with an Australian mine, the Group’s steel trading volume
and turnover were better in 2010 than the previous year,
contributing to profit levels.

For steel processing business, the Group’s two factories
have merged into one. The relocation and the equipment
installation were completed in 2010. By revamping the
production line and redeveloping the factory in Changan,
Dongguan in PRC, the Group successfully eliminated some
of the obsolete machineries and fine-tuned the frontline
workforce. That helped to achieve energy saving, cost control
and optimise production and management. The Group's steel
processing business swung into profit as both turnover and
profit recorded growth.

In the aspect of investment and development of mineral
resources, having shareholders’ approval obtained at special
general meeting, the Group completed the acquisition of a
51% stake in Tai Xin Minerals Limited at the end of March
2010. Owning an extraordinarily large magnetite iron mine
in Laiyang City, Shandong in PRC, the target company of
this transaction is engaged in exploring, refining, processing
and selling iron ores. Still in an investment phase, the Group
has been conducting exploration in the magnetite iron-
ore project, constructing mines and processing plants for
the past two years. Following several test runs, the first
processing plant completed trial production on 1 November
2010 and production officially commenced. The construction
of a second processing plant was completed in December
2010, and the production is expected to commence in June
2011 following the fine-tuning of production facilities. The
construction of a 35kV/10kV power transformer plant was
completed to transmit electricity at the end of September
2010 and the plant is able to meet the electricity demand
from both the first and second processing plants. In addition
to the existing iron ore resources, the Group will continue to
explore the rest of mining areas, aiming to raise the resources
level further. Following the development of mining areas
and the production commencement of processing plants, the
Group will accomplish economies of scale in production.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & IF

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel business (continued)

Looking forward to 2011, the global economy will be facing
both challenges and opportunities. On the international front,
the eurozone debt crisis, the political instability in North
Africa and Middle East, continued international anti-dumping
pressure and the cancellation of export tax rebate of certain
steel commodities have hindered steel export in China. On the
domestic front, the structural changes in domestic economy
and the growing pressure for the RMB’s appreciation and
rate hike have slow down the growth of domestic demand
for steel. Fundamentally, demand for steel products remains
strong thanks to positive macroeconomic policies and
sustainable economic growth. As the consolidation of steel
enterprises continues, obsolete production capacities will be
eliminated which is positive for stable development of the
steel market. In addition, amid an increase in the trading
volume of commodities futures, the financial attribute of steel
and iron ore has become more apparent, and prices of these
financial futures have become more important. Although the
financial attribute will accelerate the volatility in steel price, it
will provide tools for companies to manage risks and enhance
resilience.

On 11 March this year, a magnitude 9 earthquake hit the
Eastern part of Japan which triggered tsunami, destroying
part of the ports and steel plant facilities. It is estimated
that not less than 30 million tons of steel capacity would be
affected. The prices of iron ore, scrap and steel will fluctuate
due to short-term imbalance of supply and demand and the
reconstruction will also contribute to the increasing demand
for steel. The Group will actively monitor and seek possible
trading opportunities.

Over the years, the Group is actively pursuing business
opportunities worldwide. The target is to build up its resources
and sales network in markets besides China. Currently, the
Group has established trading businesses in Asia, Central
and Southern Europe, the Middle East, North Africa, North
America and Latin America. Short-term instability in individual
markets will not influence the Group’s overall business
substantially.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel business (continued)

We expect steel and iron ore trading and the processing
businesses will be able to maintain reasonably good operating
results. The continual development of magnetite iron ore mine
in Shandong and the start of various new processing plants
will contribute to the Group’s profitability in the future.

The Group will continue to follow its stable and yet flexible
operating strategy, striving for better operating performance.

Commercial Property Investment

Yangzhou Times Square, an integrated shopping mall in
Jiangsu Province, PRC developed by the Group, continues
to offer stable rental yields and capital gains. The property
started planning for refurbishment of the restaurants and
entertainment floors in 2010. Large-scale renovation will
begin in the first quarter of 2011. After optimizing internal
design, improving transportation network and subdivision
of floor spaces, Yangzhou Times Square has successfully
attracted renowned national chain stores. The number of
restaurants has increased from 11 to more than 20, and the
number of five-star rated cinema halls has increased from 6
to 10. With more options and a greater variety of restaurants
and entertainment venues, the mall is attracting more people
as well as providing a favorable term for lease in 2012 due to
the refurbishment of the department store floor areas.

After careful reviewing the consumer goods and luxury
goods sector, the Group is currently looking for partners
and business opportunities in commercial properties and
related sectors, aiming to build up a commercial property and
retail-related business via the expertise and network of the
Yangzhou Times Square.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & IF

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's equity was a
record high of approximately HK$2,261,266,000 (2009:
HK$1,588,051,000). The growth of equity was mainly
attributable to the allotment of 307,380,000 shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.605 per share and the issue of
685,700,000 shares at the fair value of HK$0.7 per share as
partial consideration for the acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals
Limited during the year.

Although HK$182,000,000 had been applied for the
completion of the acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals Limited
during the year, the issue of placing new shares replenished
the Group’s working capital requirement and led the Group's
current ratio, as a ratio of current assets to current liabilities,
retained at 1.56 (2009: 1.7). As at 31 December 2010,
the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$374,103,000 (2009: HK$293,639,000).

As at 31 December 2010, the total borrowings of the
Group were approximately HK$1,378,000,000 (2009:
HK$959,000,000) and their maturity profile as agreed with
the lenders was as follows:

RERDHRMERE

MNZE-TF+-_A=+—0 K&EE#E
HERSEF = 48 %2,261,266,0007T (=
TENF ;- #%1,588,051,0007T) ° R
EINEZRAAAT NIZREEZREK0.605
TLHAC2$307,380,000/% M 19 K 3% A FE GRS
#0.7 7T 3£17685,700,000 B A% 17 - 1E B Uk EE
Tai Xin Minerals Limited 2 301X (B o

N N 8 gt 5o A U BB Tai Xin Minerals Limited
S {574 % 182,000,0007T © AMAR R HEZ
BOIREFTROEHAEEZEEESNT
T REFEEEZFBLR(RBEERRE A
B B 56(ZBEENE  1.7) c AT
T-FTEF-_A=+—0 AEEAFEFRS
N SRITHE 824078 H5374,103,000 L ( ZEE N,
£ 7#293,639,0007T) °

NW-ZE-TE+-_A=+—0 £@E4£E
R4 R 1,378,000,0007C ( ZEE N E -
785 #959,000,0007T) * BEEERAHZEZE
SREARATE -

2010 2009

HK$ million HKS$ million

EBEEET BEEET

Within one year —FRN 895 567
Between one and two years —Z2ZFR 171 128
Between two and five years “ERFENR 255 231
Over five years HBiBRF 57 33
1,378 959

The Group's borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Euro, REEEFUAET - BT - ARBERBTR

Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar, and were charged interest
at prevailing market rates.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a ratio
of total borrowings net of total cash and cash equivalents to
total equity, was 0.44 (2009: 0.44).
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 [ 57

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group's receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in US Dollar, Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group considers that its exposure
to exchange rate risk is modest except for Euro in which
less than 10% of the Group’s receipts and payments were
denominated for 2010. To minimise the exchange rate risk,
forward exchange contracts are used when required, in
particular for Euro.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had the following
outstanding corporate guarantees:

3

vl

AT

PR

HEE 5 458 L B

AEBEZRA 2 -BEERAEHIER
XL BT ARBRET - AEERAE
SMNERBR AKX - BRAERAREB T —FF
ELRI10%KRARZ HWERELET - B
RAESNERK - REREE - @FAEM
ESR - AHERT

LFEE

R-ZZE-—TF+_A=+—H XEEEGU
TORMEEA R AR

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Guarantees for general banking AEENRRITRE
facilities granted to an associate EH 7 HER 13,800 21,730
Guarantees given to banks for REBYXEEERS
mortgage facilities granted to BxmmiRiTEL 2
the buyers of the Group’s properties IR 20 86
13,890 21,816

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had contingent liabilities
relating to Mainland China land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately HK$29,305,000 (2009: HK$30,009,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided of approximately HK$14,475,000
in respect of plant and machinery and leasehold improvement
(2009: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis & % [& &7 & £2 2 #T

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain leasehold land, land use rights and buildings with a
net book amount of approximately HK$101,027,000 (2009:
HK$141,338,000); (ii) certain motor vehicles and machinery
with a net book amount of approximately HK$4,507,000
(2009: HK$4,577,000); (iii) certain investment properties of
approximately HK$647,473,000 (2009: HK$550,613,000);
and (iv) certain short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,335,000 (2009: Nil).

STAFF

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 820 staff.
Staff remuneration packages are structured and reviewed
by reference to market terms and individual merits. The
Group also provides other staff benefits which include year
end double pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may also be
granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as
and when required.
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Biographies of Directors = = & &

MR. CHAN SHING, AGED 55
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. CHAN joined the Group as Chairman and Managing
Director in 1998. Mr. CHAN has over 20 years of experience
in international trading of metal, the processing and
manufacturing of related products, the management
of industrial enterprises, the investment in industrial
and commercial properties, and corporate planning and
management. Mr. CHAN is also an Executive Director of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited. Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of
Mr. CHAN.

MR. SIT HOI TUNG, AGED 45
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. SIT joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy
General Manager in 2006. Mr. SIT is also a Director of Burwill
Resources Limited in-charge of contracts and import/export
bills operation for metal trading. He graduated from the
Finance Department of Jinan University in Guangzhou. He had
worked for banking sector and metal trading companies and
has over 16 years’ experience in international metal trading
and import/export bills operation.

MR. YANG DAWEI, AGED 58
Executive Director

Mr. YANG joined the Group in March 2001 and is an Executive
Director. Mr. YANG is a Senior Economist of the PRC. In mid-
1980's, he was employed as the Head of Changzhou Tractor
Company, Jiangsu Province; the Chairman of Changzhou City
Labour Union and the Head of Liyang City, Jiangsu Province.
In mid 1990’s, he was elected as Routing Deputy Mayor of
Changzhou City Government, Jiangsu Province. He is currently
the Chairman of the Jiangsu Overseas Group Corp. and the
Chairman and President of Zhong Shan Company Limited,
the window company of the Jiangsu Province in Hong Kong.
He has got over 20 years of experience in corporate planning
and management, international trade, corporate finance and
project investment, international economic and technology
cooperation.
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MS. LAU TING, AGED 54
Executive Director

Ms. LAU joined the Group as an Executive Director in
1998. Ms. LAU has over 18 years of experience in business
development and strategic planning, project investment and
financial management. She is the spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing.
Ms. LAU is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited.

MS. TUNG PUI SHAN, VIRGINIA, AGED 44
Executive Director

Ms. TUNG joined the Group in 1988 and is an Executive
Director. Ms. TUNG is currently in-charge of the Investment
Division. She holds a bachelor’'s degree in Management
Sciences from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

MR. KWOK WAI LAM, AGED 48
Executive Director

Mr. KWOK joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive
Director. He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s
Financial Controller. Mr. KWOK has over 20 years’ experience
in the areas of auditing, finance and accounting. He is a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

MR. YIN MARK, AGED 53
Executive Director

Mr. YIN joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 1999. He graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Language University and worked for China National
Metals and Minerals Import and Export Corporation (renamed
China Minmetals Corporation) and European multinational
steel manufacturing and trading company. He is currently the
President of Burwill Steel Pipes Limited, and is in-charge of
the Group's steel processing division and responsible for its
daily management, business planning and development. He
has over 30 years of experience in international metal trading.
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MR. SHAM KAI MAN, AGED 44
Executive Director

Mr. SHAM joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director
of Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-
charge of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr.
SHAM graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior
to joining the Group, had worked for a multinational steel
trading company for 7 years. He has over 16 years extensive
experience in steel trading and gains good international
connections.

MR. CUI SHU MING, AGED 73
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CUI joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. CUI graduated from People’s University
of China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China,
Jiangsu branch, the Executive Director of The National
Commercial Bank, Ltd. and the General Manager of its
Hong Kong branch, a Director and the Executive Vice
President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr. CUIl is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, both
are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years’
experience in international finance and corporate planning
and management.

MR. MIAO GENGSHU, AGED 69
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. MIAO joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in December 2008. He is a senior economist,
graduated from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
with major in economics and trade. He is currently the
president of China Council for International Investment
Promotion, the honorary chairman representing the Chinese
side in the Sino-Brazil Business Council and a vice chairman
of China International Trade Society. Mr. MIAO was a
member of the 10th National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") and a member
of the Foreign Affairs Committee of the CPPCC. He was the
chairman of Sinotrans CSC Group, the president of China
Minmetals Corporation, the general manager of Shanghai
Metals & Minerals Import & Export Company and a deputy
director general of Shanghai Foreign Economics & Trade
Commission.
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MR. HUANG SHENGLAN, AGED 59
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG joined the Group as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in September 2004. Mr. HUANG was
an executive director and the deputy governor of China
Everbright Bank, Head Office and was an executive director
and the general manager of China Everbright Technology
Limited. Mr. HUANG holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University and in International Economics from
Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law from Xiamen University and in Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, USA. Mr. HUANG is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
Symphony Holdings Limited and Chongging Road & Bridge
Co. Ltd..

MR. SZE TSAI PING, MICHAEL, AGED 65
Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE was appointed as a Non-Executive Director in 2000.
Mr. SZE has over 30 years of experience in the financial and
securities field. He graduated with a Master of Laws (LLM)
Degree from The University of Hong Kong. He is currently a
Member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal. He
was a former Council Member, Member of the Main Board
Listing Committee and the Disciplinary Appeals Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Member of
the Cash Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Mr. SZE is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of GOME Electrical Appliances Holding
Limited, Greentown China Holdings Limited, Harbour Centre
Development Limited and Walker Group Holdings Limited, all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. SZE resigned
on 23 January 2008 and 3 November 2009 respectively,
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of T S Telecom
Technologies Limited and C Y Foundation Group Limited,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. SZE is a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and also a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors Limited.
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The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
their report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 45.

The respective state of affairs of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2010 are set out in the balance sheets on
pages 43 and 44.

The Group's cash flows are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 49 and 50.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group are steel trading, steel
processing, mineral resources exploration and development
and commercial property investment.

The Group's segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

On 21 January 2010, the shareholders at the special general
meeting passed the ordinary resolution in relation to the
distribution in specie of shares in an associate, China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited (“CLS"), on the basis of 9 CLS
shares for every 20 shares of the Company held. A total of
1,540,023,984 CLS shares with an aggregate market value
of approximately HK$639,110,000 were recognised as
distribution during the year ended 31 December 2010. The
distribution has resulted in a gain on distribution in specie of
shares of CLS of approximately HK$501,897,000 which was
recognised in consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 15
— five largest suppliers combined 34

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five major
customers combined is less than 30%.

None of the Directors, their respective associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the above suppliers or customers at any time during
the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The particulars of properties held by the Group for investment
as at 31 December 2010 are set out on page 175.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 December 2010 are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and Euro. As at 31 December
2010, around 85% of the Group’s bank loans were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and US Dollar. All the bank
loans bear interest at prevailing market rates.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to
HK$860,001,000 (2009: HK$133,631,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction
against the granting of such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY"’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 December 2010, there were options for 91,600,000
shares granted by the Company pursuant to the option
scheme (the “Option Scheme”), as adopted by the
shareholders of the Company on 6 June 2002, which were
valid and outstanding.

() Summary of terms of the Option Scheme
(i) Purpose of the Option Scheme

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Participants (as stated in paragraph
(ii)) to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract
resources that are valuable to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Summary of terms of the Option Scheme (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Participants

Any person being an employee, officer, buying
agent, selling agent, consultant, sales representative
or marketing representative of, or supplier or
provider of goods or services to, the Group,
including any executive or non-executive director of
the Group.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group must not exceed 30 per cent.
of the number of issued shares from time to time.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the Option Scheme as at the date of this report is
2,564,430 shares, representing approximately 0.05
per cent. of the issued share capital of the Company
as of that date.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such Participant in any
12-month period up to and including the proposed
date of grant for such options would exceed 1 per
cent. of the number of shares in issue as at the
proposed date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Summary of terms of the Option Scheme (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme at any time during a
period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by
the Board to the grantee, such period to commence
on the date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day of the
said period. Under the Option Scheme, the Board
may, at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the
options to be granted under the Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant at the time the grant of
the options is made to (and subject to acceptance
by) the Participant and will be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance) of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

(viii) The life of the Option Scheme

The Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 6 June
2002, after which period no further options will
be granted or accepted but the provisions of the
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(1) Movements of options

(i

Directors

-]
CHAN Shing
B

SIT Hoi Tung
BiER

YANG Dawei
N

LAU Ting
IS

TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
E b

KWOK Wai Lam
BER

YIN Mark
F

SHAM Kai Man
8%

CUI'Shu Ming
EEH

Date of
grant

RHiAM

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010

06/07/2010
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Exercise
price
per share

BRITER
HKS
BB

05

05

05

05

05

05

05

05

05

MRt ® (2)
() REExESRH
Exercise period Number of options
fHEH RREHE
outstanding  granted  exercised  cancelled
as at during during during
from until  01/01/2010  theyear  theyear  the year
®
01/01/2010
# E REAGE  EARH  EATE EAES
(Notes)
)
06/10/2010  05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
061072010 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
061072011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
06102010 05/10/2013 - 630,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 630,000 - -
061072012 05/10/2013 - 540,000 - -
06/10/2010  05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
06102010 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
061072011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
06102010 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
061072012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
06/10/2010  05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
061072010 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
061072011 05/10/2013 - 1,540,000 - -
06102012 05/10/2013 - 1,320,000 - -
06102010 05/10/2013 - 630,000 - -
06102011 05/10/2013 - 630,000 - -
061072012 05/10/2013 - 540,000 - -

lapsed outstanding
during as at
the year  31/12/2010
®

31/12/2010

Eh%N  BRETE

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

= 630,000
= 630,000
= 540,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

- 1,540,000
- 1,540,000
- 1,320,000

= 630,000
= 630,000
= 540,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

() Movements of options (continued)

MREkEE®(2)

() FEBxiESE (&)

Number of options
B
exercised  cancelled lapsed outstanding
during during during as at
theyear  theyear  theyear 31/12/2010
®
31/12/2010

AR EAER  FARY  BERTE

= S = 630,000
= S = 630,000
= S = 540,000

= = = 630,000
= = = 630,000
= S = 540,000

S S = 630,000
S S S 630,000
= = = 540,000

= - (840,000) 18,130,000
= - (840,000) 18,130,000
S - (720,000) 15,540,000

S - (2,400,000) 91,600,000

Exercise period
frEd
Exercise outstanding  granted
Date of price asat during
grant per share from until  01/01/2010  the year
R
01/01/2010
Hes SRITER ] E RAFOE  FARA
HKS (Notes)
BET (i)
(i) Directors (continued)
B2
MIAO Gengshu 06/07/2010 0.5 06/102010  05/10/2013 - 630,000
BHE 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 - 630,000
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 - 540,000
HUANG Shenglan 06/07/2010 0.5 06/1072010 0511072013 - 630,000
BBE 06/102011  05/1012013 - 630,000
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 - 540,000
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael 06/07/2010 0.5 06/102010  05/10/2013 - 630,000
£BY 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 - 630,000
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 - 540,000
(i) Continuous contract employees 06/07/2010 0.5 06/102010  05/10/2013 - 18,970,000
EHAWER 06/10/2011  05/10/2013 - 18,970,000
06/10/2012  05/10/2013 - 16,260,000
Total:
g - 94,000,000
Notes: Hist -
1. The options are recognised as expenses in the financial 1.

statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 2. Other details of the value of options granted
during the year and the accounting policy adopted for
the share options are set out in notes 20 and 2.20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

2. The closing price per share of the Company on 6 July 2010, 2.
being the date of grant of the above share options, is

HK$0.465 per share.

Having considered that the existing Option Scheme will
be expired on 5 June 2012, the Directors proposed to put
forward to the shareholders of the Company a new share
option scheme for their adoption at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Details of the new share option scheme will

be set out in the Company’s circular dated 21 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. MIAO Gengshu

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Non-Executive Director

Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark and Mr. CUI
Shu Ming shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out on pages 11 to 14.
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Report of Directors &= & B ¥R &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company (including
those interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have interests and short positions under the
provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

EFERITHMEBNEN  HMKRGRE
SERPETHERRRE

RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H  REXRA
BREZ LR ([ESEREED ) E
352{FRPTRTEA TREFREMATE - saK
BETRARESFETESFXZNFRETRIAE
HARRRBERZFT - NRARREE RITHAR
BRARAREEMBERF(ERRIEFNM
HIEIRGIEXVERD Bty - HBRERR ) RIEHE
BFARYRBESZ BRI SEE OE
mMRE - BT

FATFRG RERRGER

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERRGRERKROHE
Approximate
percentage in
Corporate the Company’s issued
Name of Director Personal Interests Family Interests Interests Total share capital
BIEFLEERT
EEft® EAER RE#E AFEER By B&afHtt
CHAN Shing 110,798,521(L) 108,442,601(L) 2,414,966,037(L) 2,634,207,159(L) 59.66%(L)
B (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) 1,406,427,301(S) 1,406,427,301(5) 31.85%(S)
(Hit1) (Wit1k2) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Wi3k4) (Hit4)
SIT Hoi Tung 8,813,869(L) = = 8,813,869(L) 0.20%(L)
BER (Note 1)
(Hit1)
YANG Dawei 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
BAR (Note 5)
(Wits)
LAU Ting 108,442,601(L) 110,798,521(L) 2,414,966,037(L) 2,634,207,159(L) 59.66%(L)
2 (Note 1) (Notes 1 & 6) 1,406,427,301(S) 1,406,427,301(5) 31.85%(S)
(Wi1) (Hit1k6) (Notes 3 & 4) (Note 4)
(Wit324) (Writ4)
TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia 26,125,226(L) 110,000(L) 7,104,000(L) 33,339,226(L) 0.76%(L)
R b (Note 1) (Note 7)
(Hrit1) (Hit7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND EER{TREHNVEN - HEBRORE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES SEhiESNEaRKE2)

AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company EAFIRORIAMBGES(E)
(continued)

Number of ordinary shares & underlying shares

EERRARARRIAKA
Approximate
percentage in
Corporate the Company’s issued
Name of Director Personal Interests Family Interests Interests Total share capital
HEELFERT
BB AAER RS LAFES Ha BFEHL
KWOK Wai Lam 4,400,000(L) - - 4,400,000(L) 0.10%(L)
FER (Note 1)
(1)
YIN Mark 5,900,000(L) - - 5,900,000(L) 0.13%(L)
FiT (Note 1)
(1)
SHAM Kai Man 4,400,000(L) - - 4,400,000(L) 0.10%(L)
EHX (Note 1)
(Hit1)
CUI'Shu Ming 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
EZH (Note 5)
(H125)
MIAO Gengshu 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
HHE (Note 5)
(H125)
HUANG Shenglan 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
BHE (Note 5)
(Hits)
SZE Tsai Ping, Michael 1,800,000(L) - - 1,800,000(L) 0.04%(L)
£EF (Note 5)
(H125)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. Among these interests, 4,400,000 underlying shares were share
options.

2. These interests were held by Ms. LAU Ting, the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

3. 1,290,961,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory
Add”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (a company
which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting).
226,403,853 shares were held by Hang Sing Overseas Limited (“Hang
Sing”) which is owned as to 51% by Orient Strength Limited (“Orient
Strength”), a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting. 211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose
Corporation, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting. 685,700,000 shares were charged by Tai Xin
Holdings Limited (“Tai Xin Holdings”) in favour of Burwill Minerals
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

4. As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting are
deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the
same shares.

5. Among these interests, 1,800,000 underlying shares were share
options.

6.  These interests were held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms.
LAU Ting.

7. 7,104,000 shares were owned by Focus Cheer Consultants Limited,
a company which is wholly-owned by Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia.

8. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes
short position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had,
or were deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

EFERITHMEBNEN  HMKRGRE
SEPHEANERRAE(E)

FOFKRGREMBKIGER(Z)

Bt -

1. ERERET4,400,0000% 8RR BEEARHE o

2. WhERGRHIEZLES - B ARMELE
2B -

3. 1,290,961,336 R A ERBIBEL T2 E
A K Favor King Limitedi B 828 B 2
A 7]Glory Add Limited([ Glory Add])#575 °
226,403,853 FAHang Sing Overseas Limited
([Hang Sing])#% * Orient Strength Limited
([ Orient Strength 1) # & Hang Sing 51% ##&
= MR EERBIFELZ TR EEHEAOrient
Strength © 211,900,848 iX 3 Strong Purpose
Corporationf§4 + ML EREEL T2 EHA
Strong Purpose Corporation ° 685,700,000 J5
FATai Xin Holdings Limited([ Tai Xin Holdings )
ERFANRHEZEANBRAREREEERA
g o

4. BRBREEE KBS T 2 SR AR UL
0 AT REAER A -

5. E#ESE 1,800,000 48 B8R 17D B BE AN AE -

6. ULFEmARMALHES - RBELERTELL
pd

7. 7,104,0000 B EMM L =2 EHE 2 NFIFocus
Cheer Consultants Limitedi A °

8. [LIRRHRE : [SIRTFHKE -

BREXHIHEEEN  RZZT—ZF+=-A
=+—8  ARRZEZTHITHREAHBER
AARREAABEAR(EEREFSFLPE
1&BIZEXVED) 2 Bdn ~ ABRERR D MEHET
E&‘&, REH R EIEHE AE TR

SR B REIT IR R E 5 M EAE & B 35215
Fﬁ%ﬁ BEFZERLMA - SAEWKE LT
REEBETELFR ZMNIRETRBAALD
A BB FIT o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, according to the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO,
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

EFERRREGRAEMKROPERTHE
SRKE

RZZE—ZTF+A=+—H  REXRA
RRBS LB IRBIE3IBCIRFTRER THF
ZERMAE - A TAL(RRRERERITR
BERINRA R R RABRR D T A

HRHA
ROREARBHES

Approximate
percentage in

Number of the Company’s
Nature of ordinary shares & issued share
Name of shareholder interest underlying shares capital Note
BB R ¥HEEF LT
BREB BaME fHREER IR & B ERTERETRAL Kt
Favor King Limited Corporate 1,290,961,336(L) 29.24%(L) 1
NG 1,290,961,336(S) 29.24%(S)
The Company Corporate 685,700,000(L) 15.53%(L) 2
¥iN/NE] NS
Burwill Minerals Limited Chargee 685,700,000(L) 15.53%(L) 2
EREXER AT EEEERUN
LI Xuan Corporate 685,700,000(L) 15.53%(L) 2
= NG 685,700,000(S) 15.53%(S)
Tai Xin Investment Limited Corporate 685,700,000(L) 15.53%(L) 2
NG 685,700,000(S) 15.53%(S)
Hang Sing Beneficiary 226,403,853(L) 5.13%(L) 3
B 115,465,965(S) 2.62%(S)
Orient Strength Corporate 226,403,853(L) 5.13%(L) 3
NG 115,465,965(S) 2.62%(S)
Zhong Shan Company Limited  Corporate 226,403,853(L) 5.13%(L) 3
EILAR AT NG| 115,465,965(S) 2.62%(S)
Superior Quality Assets Limited Corporate 226,403,853(L) 5.13%(L) 3
NG 115,465,965(S) 2.62%(S)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

1. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-
owned by Favor King Limited. Favor King Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. CHAN Shing and as to 50% by Ms. LAU Ting.

2. These interests were held by Tai Xin Holdings (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tai Xin Investment Limited) and charged by Tai Xin
Holdings in favour of Burwill Minerals Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company). Tai Xin Investment Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xuan.

3. 51% of the issued share capital of Hang Sing was owned by Orient
Strength, a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing
and Ms. LAU Ting, and 49% of the issued share capital of Hang Sing
was owned by Superior Quality Assets Limited, a company which
is wholly-owned by Zhong Shan Company Limited. Zhong Shan
Company Limited is wholly-owned by the Jiangsu Provincial People’s
Government of the PRC. These 226,403,853 shares held by Hang
Sing formed part of the interests of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU
Ting as disclosed herein.

4. The letter “L" denotes long position and the letter "S” denotes
short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

EFERRREGRAEMKROPERTHE
SRBE(E)

B3 R AR IR & (2
Bt -

1. WS HEFavor King Limited2 B A Z A F]
Glory Add¥# ° Favor King Limited2 Bl g1 BR ¥
FERBELTEEEAES0%ER

2. thEHEZEATai Xin Investment Limited 2 B %
2 & BARTai Xin Holdings#iA + WE MTai
Xin HoldingsEH F A AR M EL2 AN B AR
BERREEARAR - FHAELZEMATai Xin

Investment Limited ©

3. Hang SingZ51% B /TR T A FR Ik 2 4 K 2
Bt 2 & A Z0rient StrengthFT#A » BN
Hang SingZ49% B B&{TIRANRIREIL AR A A
2 &8 2 Superior Quality Assets LimitedFf i
B BEBUBRARNIFEIHEARBKBE2EH
B 2 A7] ° Hang Sing#§482226,403,853M T34
ST IR BRI L B fE L+ 2 MRS 2 — 3B

1/\ o

4. [URTHE [SIRTHKRE -

BREXFEEEN R-FT—FF+_H
=t+—8  SEEAAL(RRREFHITH
BERRIN AR TR R A
SIORB BRI IR E I S P E {5 33615
EEMELCMA - &/ REEKKEZMRE
BEBTRAHENS%A i - AR
EABEAT  AREAKEEFNEMBKER
AR A S LIk RV -
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MAJOR TRANSACTION - ACQUISITION OF MAGNETITE
IRON ORE MINING BUSINESSES IN THE PRC

Burwill Minerals Limited (“Burwill Minerals”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment
Limited on 5 November 2009 and the Supplemental Share
Purchase Agreement with Tai Xin Investment Limited and
Tai Xin Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) on 24 December
2009 for acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of Tai
Xin Minerals Limited (“Tai Xin Minerals”), which indirectly
owns an extraordinarily large magnetite iron ore mine in
Laiyang City, Shandong Province, PRC in aggregate an area of
approximately 21 sq. km., at a total consideration of HK$500
million, which was satisfied by the payment of HK$260 million
in cash and the issue of 685,700,000 new shares of the
Company to the Vendor (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 12 February
2010. The Acquisition constituted a major transaction for the
Company under the rules governing the listing of securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), details of the
transaction were set out in the Company’s circular dated 27
January 2010.

Completion of the Acquisition took place on 31 March 2010
and 685,700,000 shares of the Company were allotted and
issued to the Vendor accordingly. Tai Xin Minerals has become
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES HELD IN A LISTED ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

A resolution of distribution out of contributed surplus of
the Company to its shareholders (the “Distribution”) wholly
by the distribution of up to 1,540,025,856 ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each in China LotSynergy Holdings Limited
(the “CLS Shares”) on the basis of 9 CLS Shares for every 20
ordinary shares of the Company held was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 21 January 2010. Certificates for
the 1,540,023,984 CLS Shares, which represented 99.9% of
the CLS Shares held by the Company before the Distribution,
were duly dispatched to those entitled shareholders of the
Company on 3 February 2010.

Details of the Distribution were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 29 December 2009.
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REDUCTION OF SHARE PREMIUM

At the special general meeting of the Company held on
21 January 2010, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of the Company to reduce the share premium
account of the Company (as at the date of the passing of such
resolution) to nil (the “Share Premium Reduction”). The credit
arising from the Share Premium Reduction of approximately
HK$738.2 million was transferred to the contributed surplus
of the Company for the purpose of making a distribution of
1,540,023,984 ordinary shares of China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited to shareholders of the Company on 27 January 2010.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPTIAL

The authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares to
HK$680,000,000 divided into 6,800,000,000 shares, which
was passed as an ordinary resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 12
February 2010.

VOLUNTARY DELISTING OF SHARES FROM SINGAPORE
EXCHANGE SECURITIES TRADING LIMITED

In light of the comparably low trading volume of the shares
of the Company on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited ("SGX"), on 30 April 2010, the Company announced
a proposal regarding a voluntary delisting of its shares from
SGX (“Delisting”). Following confirmation from SGX on
21 May 2010, it had no objection to Delisting subject to
fulfillment of certain conditions including but not limited to
publication of and despatching a notice of the Delisting to the
shareholders of the Company at least three months prior to
the date of Delisting. The last trading day of the Company’s
shares on SGX was 2 September 2010 and Delisting took
effect on 9 September 2010. Delisting resulted in shares of
the Company being removed from the Official List of SGX.
However, shareholders can continue to trade their shares on
the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong and their voting rights and
entitlement to dividends are not affected by Delisting.

The Board considered that the Company’s listed status on
SGX was not cost-effective and was not commensurate with
the benefit to be derived by its shareholders or the relatively
significant compliance costs and administrative burden in
maintaining such listed status. As the Company continues to
maintain its primary listing on the Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong, the Board is of the view that the dispensation of such
additional costs and burden enables it to focus its resources
on the business operations of the Company.

R B {7 iR R IR

RZE—FF—A =+ —HARRQRRIBRERF
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PLACING
2010 Private Placement

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch on 11 March
2010 (the “2010 Placing Agreement”), the Company allotted
and issued a total of 307,380,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company on 16 March 2010 to at least six independent
investors at a placing price of HK$0.605 per share. The closing
price per share on 10 March 2010, being the last trading
day before the entering into the 2010 Placing Agreement,
as quoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.72. A net
proceeds of approximately HK$182.9 million raised was used
to replenish the general working capital requirements of the
Company.

The aggregate of 307,380,000 placing shares were allotted
and issued under the general mandate granted to the
Directors of the Company by its shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 9 June 2009.

2011 Top-up Placing and Subscription

Pursuant to the top-up placing and subscription agreement
dated 21 February 2011 (the “2011 Top-up Agreement”)
and the supplemental agreement dated 24 February 2011,
the Company allotted and issued 460,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.48
each to Glory Add Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, on 4 March 2011 following completion of the top-
up placing of an aggregate of 460,000,000 existing shares
to not less than six independent investors at a placing price
of HK$0.48 each. The closing price per share on 21 February
2011, being the date of the 2011 Top-up Agreement, as
quoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$0.56. A net proceeds
of approximately HK$214 million raised was used for the
expansion of mineral resources business and as general
working capital of the Group.

The 460,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company by its shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26 May 2010.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company with no specific
term of office or for an initial term of two years (subject to
individual contract) from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to
six months (subject to individual contract) notice in writing
served by either party on the other. The terms of office of
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors are the period up to their retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

On 1 February 2011, the annual salaries of each of Mr. CHAN
Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Ms. LAU Ting, Ms. TUNG Pui Shan,
Virginia, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark and Mr. SHAM
Kai Man were increased by approximately 5% to 8%.

Mr. MIAO Gengshu has ceased to be the chairman of
Sinotrans CSC Group since 11 January 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 15
of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules) in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any of the Company’s Directors or
members of its management had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and
the employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 176.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the

Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises the three Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr.
HUANG Shenglan. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng will retire and a resolution for
their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, business partners and
the community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
will review the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements to
ensure business activities and decision making processes are
made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2010, except for the
deviations as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. YANG Dawei

Ms. LAU Ting

Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. YIN Mark

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. MIAO Gengshu

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Non-Executive Director
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael

34 Annual Report 2010 &R

EREIER

SEIEE  EROLEERRYMABE -
&% BL EHBHERARATHAR
MEOREARARRMEETE - ALF
FER(EER ) B THEMOLE AR
R - BREM RORKBIEY B
#47 -

BARETMEBREEIN  EERE - AR
AREZE_ZE—ZEF+_A=+—HLFE
N—HEBETEEBARZIERARZS L
MR ([ ETAR DSOSt EER
EHESTRI([=FRI DA EATANE

EEMRSXH

AR AR AR R 8% 1Pt _E T BT A
BEEETEFXHHRESTRI([RETRI )
RBARBZEZEBHRRHITRTA - ERPT
BEFFHRTERE  MAEEIRRRK
EFNFREADETIRETRME 2 RERE -

BEER
REBANERRERY  ARREEEHE -

BOEE

BRI (LB RE FARAETE)
B BRI (BIBAEE)
ZPNES e

£l

EMmzt

BEREE

FU KL

TR L

BIUAFMTESE
EEHEE
HMERLE
ERBELE

ERTER
SEBFRE



BEZRERLA

Corporate Governance Report 1B AWM S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised twelve
Directors, eight of whom are Executive Directors (including
the Chairman), three of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one of whom is Non-Executive Director. Details
of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set
out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors” of
this annual report. The Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal actions against the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.
Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The day-to-
day running of the Company is delegated to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company is independent in character
and judgement. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director a written confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group's business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All
regular board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board
to make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board except that Ms. LAU Ting is the spouse of Mr. CHAN
Shing.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of directors entitled
to be present. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group, which did not fully comply with
the relevant Code provision. Board meetings will be held on
other occasions when board decisions are required.

During the year under review, fifteen board meetings
(including two regular board meetings) were held. Details of
the attendance of the Directors are as follows:—
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Directors’ Attendance

EEHERH
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRI ST AE 15/15
(Chairman and Managing Director) (F/EHE FAHEHE)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEHR G E 14/15
(Deputy General Manager) (Bll4E48FE )
Mr. YANG Dawei BRESRE 115
Ms. LAU Ting et 3/15
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia E Bz 15/15
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam SMERRTE 15/15
Mr. YIN Mark FU S 14/15
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRI E 15/15
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIJEMITESE
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 4/15
Mr. MIAO Gengshu BHELE 2/15
Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHESE 2/15
Non-Executive Director ERTES
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael SEEFRAE 3/15
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer were
not performed by separate individuals as stipulated in Code
provision A.2.1. The Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company, Mr. CHAN Shing, currently assumes the role of the
chairman and also the chief executive officer responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies of and organising the implementation structure for
the Company and also managing the Group's overall business
operations. Given the nature of the Group's businesses which
require considerable market expertise, the Board believed
that the vesting of the two roles provides the Group with
stable and consistent leadership and allows for more effective
planning and implementation of long term business strategies.
The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of the
structure to balance the power and authority of the Board
and the management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term as stipulated in Code provision
A.4.1, but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws to retire
by rotation at least once every three years. However, in
accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director. The Board will ensure the
retirement of each Director, other than the one who holds
the office as Chairman or Managing Director, by rotation at
least once every three years in order to comply with Code
provisions. The Chairman will not be subject to retirement by
rotation as stipulated in Code provision A.4.2, as the Board
considered that the continuity of office of the Chairman
provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is
of great importance to the smooth operations of the Group.
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. YIN Mark and Mr. CUI Shu Ming are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming,
Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr. SIT Hoi Tung. The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
the senior management, and consider and review the terms of
service contracts of the Directors and the senior management.

In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
abilities, performance and contribution of the Directors to
the Group, the performance and profitability of the Group,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the prevailing
market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held
during the year ended 31 December 2010. Details of the
attendance of the Remuneration Committee Meeting are as
follows:
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Members’ Attendance

EEHERE

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLEE 2/2
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FNZEE+/E)

Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHELE 2/2

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEHRE 2/2

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director, and approving and terminating
the appointment of a director. During the year under review,
the Company had not established a nomination committee
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The Chairman is mainly responsible
for identifying suitable candidates for members of the Board
when there is a vacancy or an additional director is considered
necessary. The Chairman will propose the appointment of
such candidates to the Board for consideration and the Board
will review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his/
her qualifications, experience and background.

During the year under review, no meeting was held by the
Board for nomination of director(s).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides
the Board with advice and recommendations. As at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. MIAO Gengshu and Mr.
HUANG Shenglan. All of them are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI
Shu Ming. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee's functions includes:

e toreview and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them; and

e to review financial and internal controls, accounting
policies and practices with management, internal and
external auditors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
under review, one of which was attended by the external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:
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Members’ Attendance

ZRHERY

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE 2/2
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BEEZEE1E)

Mr. MIAO Gengshu EELE 0/2

Mr. HUANG Shenglan EBELE 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee has been posted on the Company’s
website and is made available on request.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on page 41.
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AUDITORS’" REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had
engaged the Group's external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng and network firms, to provide the following services
and their fees charged are set out as below:

Types of Services RRIEH A
Audit of consolidated financial
statement of the Group for the year E=t
Non-audit services JEEE IR
— Acting as reporting accountants =
to report on financial information

included in investment circulars

issued by the Company
INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal controls system of
the Group.

The internal controls system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, to identify and manage potential risk. The Board
is committed to implementing an effective and sound internal
control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relations policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
shareholders timely. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The corporate website of the Company has provided a
communication platform via which the public and investor
community can access to up-to-date information regarding
the Group.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 174, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower  &/&

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street SITH115%
Central EMES

Hong Kong HETITRE3E
HERZERARATE

2REE

(REFZERM .2 BRLA])

AZEED AT R 3P ) B JATIERE
43 Z17AREREZEBRER AR (A THBEI&E
RE D) REKBRARATERIERE])Z
REMBERE UG BEHRREER_-F
—EE+ A=+ ANGARRAREESR
BXREHEZA LFENEABERR K6
PHEBSR  HEEaEHRNEARER
BER - URTZEFBREEREAMM TR

EENGSMERRARBNHRE

EXPABREELEIMAGRMNER
R EER D RIZREB(R BRI 2 K E
RERBGEAMBHRER - USHEEMB®RER
EHEEMRAFHRER - MEEERSRE
RAEMBHRERMLENA RS - AELES
MBBRRZEBETFEANKGFSERTME
PR E AR ©

BB EmaY B

BZANEERREBEEMNBTHZSTHEAE
BHRRIFLEBER » URB(ERE-NN—F
NAEPE)FRIORER B BBIRRE - bRtk 25h
AmEREEME A - ROTSRAHER
AR FEREMA LS ERAEERMEE -
RPEREBEEESIMASRONBEE
ERETE - RFEABELRMETER
R WRBIRATET  NEEEESSE
PEBERRD M EEREAERRML -

Annual Report 2010 F3¥k 41




W Burwill Holdings Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report & 37 #% £ A 3R &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2011
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W BEZRERLA

Balance Sheets EE B & X

At 31 December 2010 N=ZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H

Consolidated Company
&8 G
At At At At At
31 December 31 December TJanuary 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
RIB-BF  RIEENE WCEENE RIE-BE RCEEINE
=HE T R e ] N = D =T F R =
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit ERTT BETT BB BRI BT
(restated) (restated)
(E5]) (mE5)
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ¥RpEE
Leasehold land and land use rights RELHRLHERE 6 11,163 15,460 15,864 - -
Property, plant and equipment NE BELRE 7 418,698 151,789 162,810 - -
Investment properties VS 8 723,988 601,018 522,726 - =
Intangible assets EREE 9 553,975 - 150 - -
Investments in subsidiaries N 10 - - - 49,649 4415
Due from subsidiaries HER AR 10 - - - 387,200 131,000
Investments in associates BENARE 1 92,906 257,606 271,334 - 10,766
Available-for-sale financial assets Mt HERBEE 13 1,509 1,509 1,509 90 90
Prepayments and other receivables BRRATEYR 17 83,890 156,342 537 = -
Deferred income tax assets BRLFMEHEAE 3 2,837 23,136 20,054 - e
Total non-current assets BFnBgE 1,908,966 1,206,860 994,984 436,939 184,271
Current assets npEE
Inventories g 14 295,470 119,895 162,574 - -
Financial assets at fair value e TEEBERIRH
through profit or loss BBEE 15 9,137 12,610 40,195 649 1
Other financial assets EvBiREE 16 349,707 - - - -
Bills and accounts receivable ELZEREWIEE 17 1,132,297 1,075,523 973,906 - -
Deposits, prepayments and f&e  BHFREE
other receivables 6 17 339,800 387,301 127,863 678 484
Due from subsidiaries HEARR 10 - - - 1,451,319 1,038,988
Due from associates BEAARR 1" 178 2,262 2527 - -
Due from a related company BENARE 18 1,751 - - - -
Income tax refundable HEMER 401 190 139 190 190
Cash and bank balances BekBaks 19 374,103 293,639 361,349 627 15,763
Total current assets ghggE 2,502,844 1,891,420 1,669,053 1,453,463 1,055,426
Total assets 5 4,411,810 3,098,280 2,664,037 1,890,402 1,239,697
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Balance Sheets EE B &R

At 31 December 2010 R=ZT—ZTF+=-A=+—8H

Consolidated Company
i} NG|
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
R-E-3% RZZENE RZFENE R-E-2% RZEENE
== HE e S =f=  EBT sk
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
V53 ERT RETT BETT BT AETT
(restated) (restated)
(mE3)) (mE5)
EQUITY #a
Equity attributable to owners FLTRERAA
of the parent {1 £
Share capital e 20 441,536 342,228 311,228 441,536 342,228
Other reserves HY R 21 775,667 841,997 761,931 813,124 879,151
Retained profits RBEH 21 836,225 286,723 291,369 631,997 4,799
2,053,428 1,470,948 1,364,528 1,886,657 1,226,178
Non-controlling interests RS 207,838 117,103 104,793 - L
Total equity ey 2,261,266 1,588,051 1,469,321 1,886,657 1,226,178
LIABILITIES ff
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings £ 2 379,396 296,720 6,956 = =
Provision for land restoration and THEER
environmental costs RARAEE 25 2,983 - - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities ERmEHER 2 168,380 101,632 91,122 - -
Total non-current liabilities BERBAR 550,719 398,352 98,078 S <
Current liabilities HHAR
Borrowings £ 2 999,048 662,436 590,316 - -
Due to subsidiaries S GENEY 10 - - - 1,210 10,464
Due 10 associates U HINTEV " - 24,019 24,301 - -
Due to related companies REENAFE 18 24,079 - - - -
Bills and accounts payable ERZEREMRE 24 354,726 359,049 335,897 - -
Other payables and accruals EVEMRERETER 220,104 65,598 125,841 2,475 3,095
Income tax payable ERFEHE 1,868 715 20,283 - -
Total current liabilities EENEEN 1,599,825 1,111,877 1,096,638 3,745 13,519
Total liabilities BafE 2,150,544 1,510,229 1,194,716 3,745 13,519
Total equity and liabilities BRARAR 4,411,810 3,098,280 2,664,037 1,890,402 1,239,697
Net current assets EHEERE 903,019 779,543 572,415 1,449,718 1,041,907
Total assets less current liabilities ~ BEEREHAR 2,811,985 1,986,403 1,567,399 1,886,657 1,226,178
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
PR 3R SBESH
Chairman Director
E4 EBE
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W BEZRERLA

Consolidated Income Statement 42 &

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-T-TF+-A=+—AILFE

2010 2009
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BE¥TT BT T
Sales $HE 5 6,080,074 3,256,714
Cost of sales SHE A 27 (5,923,321) (3,158,960)
Gross profit ES| 156,753 97,754
Other gains, net Helas#8E 26 110,742 84,443
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBR 27 (52,154) (44,168)
General and administrative expenses —REITHER 27 (89,035) (70,802)
Share option expenses AR (9,548) =
Operating profit 18 B R 116,758 T 22
Finance costs BE B AR 29 (39,651) (28,230)
Gain on distribution of shares kB =N Al
in an associate R% 15 % 501,897 =
Share of profits/(losses) of FrihBt & AR &H
associates (E48) 11 7,653 (18,932)
Profit before income tax % BT 18 %54 il &2 F) 586,657 20,065
Income tax expense Frisfi > 30 (22,393) (12,401)
Profit for the year FREER 564,264 7,664
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: EBH,/(ER)FER
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FEAA 31 549,444 (4,646)
Non-controlling interests By 14,820 123110
564,264 7,664
Earnings/(Loss) per share attributable to FRAR Gz EH AFE
equity holders of the Company during  {5EERREF](E1E)
the year 32
— basic and diluted —EARKEE 13.13 HK cents#fll  (0.15) HK cents&iL
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #r& & M 18 &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_Z—ZTF+_A=+—HIFE
2010 2009
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETT BT
Profit for the year FERAF 564,264 7,664
Other comprehensive income: e T ONE
Surplus on revaluation of property Y E (B 16,250 -
Release of reserves to income statement oIREE L A I D A
for distribution of shares in an associate BERODEERRK 21 (9.511) =
Share of other comprehensive income FrEitE AR EE
of associates ZEEA 21 2,563 2,980
Currency translation differences EHETE H E5E 28,821 (881)
Other comprehensive income for FEHTEEMEA -
the year, net of tax HIBRTRIE 38,123 2,099
Total comprehensive income FEZEKRA
for the year 4 sy 602,387 9,763
Attributable to: EER
Equity holders of the Company NATIRERZZFE A 574,507 (2,547)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 27,880 12,310
Total comprehensive income FEZEKRA
for the year 4BFE 602,387 9,763
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W BEZRERLA

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 48 s E 8 XK

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_Z—ZFF+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to
owners of the parent
RARELRA AR Non-
Share Other ~ Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves profits interests equity

BA HeHE  RERN FRRES SRR
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#it  A%TT  ARTT  BETR  A%Tn AT

Balance at 1 January 2009 —ETNF-—A—B&H 311,228 761,931 291,369 104,793 1,469,321
Comprehensive income ZEBA
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(BE)/BF| - - (4,646) 12,310 7,664
Other comprehensive income: Ev2HEA :
Share of other comprehensive FrBEAREY

income of associates ZHEBA 21 - 2,980 - : 2,980
Currency translation differences ~ EM¥EH =% 2 - (881) - - (881)
Total other comprehensive income H &2 E A L% 5 2,099 - - 2,099
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 EUW A/ (E518) %58 - 2,099 (4,646) 12,310 9,763
Transactions with owners HEGHEALRS
Issue of shares BT AR 21 31,000 77,500 - 5 108,500
Share issue expenses 3T 21 - (1,757) - - (1,757)
Share of other reserves of associates FT{5H: & A R H D EEfE 21 - 2,224 - - 2,224

31,000 77,967 - - 108,967
Balance at 31 December 2009 SR e R
=t+—H#&#H 342,228 841,997 286,723 708 =l 5tk [0
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= N/

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 45 & # 2 & B) &
BE-T-TEt-A+—HILER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Attributable to
owners of the parent
FARESREAER Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits  interests equity
BFx HE#FE FEEF FRREE 2#EL88
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz B%TR B%TT  E%TT  B%TR  E%Tn
Balance at 1 January 2010 “T-TF-f—H&EH 342,228 841,997 286,723 117,103 1,588,051
Comprehensive income ZEEA
Profit for the year FRERH - - 549,444 14,820 564,264
Other comprehensive income: Ev2mEElA :
Surplus on revaluation of property ¥ & (& &gk 21 - 14,949 - 6,716 21,665
Deferred income tax arising from  #ZEEHTHRET
revaluation of property PriSH 21 = (3,736) = (1,679) (5,415)
Release of reserves to income A RE S A RGO AR
statement for distribution of BOZBERER
shares in an associate 21 - (9,511) - - (9,511)
Share of other comprehensive PGB & AREYE
income of associates ZEEA 21 - 2,563 - - 2,563
Currency translation differences — &H#E H =5 21 - 20,798 - 8,023 28,821
Total other comprehensive income HE2ER A 58 - 25,063 - 13,060 38,123
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE - 25,063 549,444 27,880 602,387
Transactions with owners HEGHREALRS
Issue of shares BIRM 21 99,308 566,647 - - 665,955
Share issue expenses BRiDEITE 21 = (3.112) = = (3.112)
Dividends M & - - - (837) (837)
Employees share option scheme: (g B ERR#EE 2] -
- value of employee services —EERKERE il - 9,548 - - 9,548
Distribution of shares in Lap =N g)
an associate 21 - (639,110) - - (639,110)
Effect on distribution in specie ENDRREE 21 - (25,366) - - (25,366)
99,308 (91,393) - (837) 7,078
Changes in ownership interests B B%XEHBAF
in subsidiaries that do not PRI
result in a loss of control EnEE) 36 - - 58 87 145
Non-controlling interests arising on %A GH14 2
business combination JEPEPRRE RS 87 - - - 63,605 63,605
99,308 (91,393) 58 62,855 70,828
Balance at 31 December 2010 e R
= e HAEEh 441,536 775,667 836,225 207,838 2,261,266
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W BEZRERLA

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 IRE&nRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_Z-ZFF+_A=+—HIFE
2010 2009
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HteE BETT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities BEFENHRERE
Cash used in operations ZERTAMNIE S 34(a) (92,387) (377,056)
Interest paid EFE (40,198) (31,256)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEAFEHR (3.851) (23,888)
Overseas tax paid B8N IE (1,892) (769)
Overseas tax refunded RIEBINGIE = 65
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBRBMNEH 141 =
Net cash used in operating activities SEEHTAAFIRS (138,187) (432,904)
Cash flows from investing activities ®REZFEINHERE
Acquisition of land use rights B A b (F A4 (4,813) -
Acquisition of property, plant and BAYE - Hes
equipment & (204,804) (1,304)
Acquisition of investment properties ALY - (39,207)
Acquisition of intangible assets BABELEE (3.375) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BAREYE
investment properties i o - (37,051)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WEEH B AR -
net of cash acquired REFE (180,838) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of g1 =N
subsidiaries b = (78,000)
Proceeds from disposal of land use £ + b {55 A A
rights Frig sk 13,655 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment  HEREYE
properties ST 32,942 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HBERFZ
plant and equipment FriS K 12,291 685
Decrease in short-term bank deposits %2 38R 1717 7R 2> 27,703 22,5803
Funds released from financial assets, BERREMBEE -
net JREE 5,300 44,786
Interest received B UFE 1,039 I
Decrease in amounts due from AN DN
associates B 333 265
Dividends received from an associate B = A IR E 4,878 -
Dividends received from financial assets 2 Uiz~ T (E:5 BEZ5
at fair value through profit or loss IR EEERS 12 106
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFTATERS (295,677) (81,016)
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HAaRERER

RE-F-TE+-A=+—BILFE

2010 2009
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BETT BT T

Cash flows from financing activities MBEZEINHRELRE
Issue of shares BTG 185,965 108,500
Share issue expenses AR 1T (3.112) (1,757)
Expenses on distribution of shares in an K5 = A &% {5

associate i (2,838) =
Increase in trust receipts bank loans EFEIRERITETIEM 291,079 161,911
Additions of other bank loans FIEETRITER 349,497 481,421
Repayment of other bank loans EEHETRITER (276,683) (270,138)
Repayment of other loans BEHEEBER (1,415) (9,790)
Decrease in amounts due to associates /KB4 A &) 30 I8 i 4> = (222)
Interest element of finance lease rental NEIETEE

payments AIRSN=5%) (68) (102)
Capital element of finance lease rental NFI&ETHE

payments =N (1,464) (1,520)
Dividend paid BERE (837) =
Net cash generated from financing RE EEEED

activities EIR S 540,124 468,303
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHEIRRITIF L 0 (2,335) =
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash IR & KIS ZEBYighn

equivalents CR )58 103,925 (45,617)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzZzRE&EEBRE

at 1 January ZEBY 265,936 311,553
Effect of exchange rate changes MEREE) s & 952 =
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—_A=+—HBzH%

31 December MR EEY 34(b) 370,813 265,936
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in steel trading, steel processing,
mineral resources and commercial property.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983,
and have a secondary listing on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”) since 1990.
On 9 September 2010, the Company announced that it
voluntarily delisted its shares from the SGX-ST.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

iR e B RS R I R
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HES WMENT  BELARLEERE
HOEE -

ARBRBREEMR L REHRRER
DA e ARARMPBE-NAN=ZFER
EEBMARIABRAR([BZA])
£ R—hANABFERFINRESFR
SBRRAFIMERZMIEE - £
meRZF—FFNAANA  BAFE
HRBERN D3R 32 2 P B BERR AR

BRRBHRAN - HEFBERRAEET
TR - REMBRRAELAESTRE
T ——F=A-ThBEFEE-
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MRS AR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBRREZ)

2.1 REEHEE)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management

RIBB BV REERNRER 2 B 5%
BRBEAETERNS G - &
BENTAREAAEESTHRE

{EHI 2B © 35 REATR A -
BUATERE IR A B SR

to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, VEE K 2 B8 R H M T44E 58 -

or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures DI B R

(a) New and amended standards, and interpretations () ANEEIRMNZFET MEFTER
adopted by the Group Mt
The following new standards, amendments to LATNET2ER] « ERERT MR E

VAE_F—FF—A—HH
SREOBA TS R B R ERA -

standards and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2010:

e HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business Combinations’, o BB EEAFIFR
and consequential amendments to HKAS (e EBE8 I RA

MErl < B E Gt RIS
275 478 RIBIL M 53R
=] BAGEAF28
SRIRBERRZIE | )
FREGTEREIRIN
BEMEZER] ER
REBRHA_ZTTNF
TtA—BHZRRABNE
(EESEEE R E AL S0
ES Lo

27, 'Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’, HKAS 28, ‘Investments in
Associates’, and HKAS 31, ‘Interests in
Joint Ventures’, are effective prospectively
to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards, and interpretations
adopted by the Group (continued)

The revised standard continues to apply
the acquisition method to business
combinations but with some significant
changes compared with HKFRS 3. For
example, all payments to purchase a
business are recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently
re-measured through the statement of
comprehensive income. There is a choice
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. All
acquisition-related costs are expensed.

The revised standard was applied to the
acquisition of the controlling interest in
Tai Xin Minerals Limited on 31 March
2010. Contingent consideration of
approximately HK$314,867,000 has been
recognised at fair value at 31 March 2010.
The contingent consideration would not
have previously been recorded at the
date of acquisition, as the contingent
consideration arrangement was not
probable. Acquisition-related costs of
approximately HK$5,298,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, which previously would have
been included in the consideration for the
business combination.

4= A B

775 R M =

[0 =

2

EEEBREEZ)

2.1 REEHEE)

BEHR

BERGIEE)

(@) ALBERMZFFT RIEFTERI
M (&)

TR AT R AR AB Y 575
EHERBEL BHR
BEMBREERFIN
& BEfEHETERE
B o Bl - BEXRB A
BENFERBEEBHNA
FEAK - MOBRSES
ZERANFERNE2EE
HREHTE - T EI
PRSI B T 2 1
o ADEERRERRNE
EEDA N AR
DR EBET FEEL
LePIEtE - PG KRB AR
ERYA AR

BRI ENEAR - —F
F=H=+—HKHETai
Xin Minerals Limited 2 #%2
AEHE RS o SKARBLBE
314,867,000 7T LA A F(E
INTES e B
HAER - LERITRHEER
UeiE BRER S AANRE - B
TRATREA K AREBR
HE o WHEIBR B LB
5,298,000 LA 4R & 1B 3
RER  UFBIBERE
HEFRRKEERE -
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards, and interpretations
adopted by the Group (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of
Financial Statements’. The amendment
clarifies that the potential settlement of
a liability by the issue of equity is not
relevant to its classification as current or
non-current. By amending the definition
of current liability, the amendment
permits a liability to be classified as non-
current (provided that the entity has an
unconditional right to defer settlement by
transfer of cash or other assets for at least
12 months after the accounting period)
notwithstanding the fact that the entity
could be required by the counterparty
to settle in shares at any time. The
amendment has no material impact on the
Group's financial statements.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes
specific guidance regarding classification
of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on
lease classification. As a result, leases of
land should be classified as either finance
or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the
lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied
retrospectively for annual periods
beginning 1 January 2010 in accordance
with the effective date and transitional
provisions of the amendment. The Group
has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land and land use
rights as at 1 January 2010 on the basis
of information existing at the inception
of those leases, and recognised the
leasehold land in Hong Kong as finance
lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Group has reclassified
certain leasehold land from operating
lease to finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BESHBEEEZ)

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 ERRHEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BT B G REE(E)
(continued)
(@) New and amended standards, and interpretations (@) ANEFEIQZ I RIBETLER
adopted by the Group (continued) M2 (4E)
The land interest of the Group that is held for AREERIEER 2 THESA
own use is accounted for as property, plant and MEGIEYNEE - #eS R - I
equipment and is depreciated from the land Bk BIERE ST AR
interest available for its intended use over the HIRZEE v AP A ERER AR
shorter of the useful live of the asset and the EEH RS ETERE o
lease term.
The effect of the adoption of this amendment is BRI EST 2 S22 m T ¢
as below:
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-®—®F RN_FTTNF
+=A TZH RIETAF
=F=H = — A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT
Decrease in leasehold land and ME TR+
land use rights FRERD (61,064) (62,308) (63,552)
Increase in property, plant and ME - IR RERE
equipment byl 61,064 62,308 63,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards, and interpretations
adopted by the Group (continued)

° HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of
Assets’, effective 1 January 2010. The
amendment clarifies that the largest
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
to which goodwill should be allocated
for the purposes of impairment testing
is an operating segment, as defined by
paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, ‘Operating
Segments’ (that is, before the aggregation
of segments with similar economic
characteristics). The amendment has no
material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

° HK Int 5, ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause’ clarifies
that term loans that include a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right
to call the loans at any time (“repayment
on demand clause”) should be classified
by the borrower as current liabilities. The
Group has applied HK Int 5 for the first
time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires
retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements
set out in HK Int 5, the Group has changed
its accounting policy on classification of
term loans with a repayment on demand
clause. In the past, the classification of
such term loans were determined based
on the agreed scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. Under
HK Int 5, term loans with a repayment on
demand clause are classified as current
liabilities.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards, and interpretations
adopted by the Group (continued)

As a result, bank loans that contain
a repayment on demand clause with
the aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$95,312,000 and
HK$146,467,000 have been reclassified
from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities as at 31 December 2009 and
1 January 2009, respectively. At 31
December 2010, bank loans (that are
repayable more than one year after the
end of the reporting period but contain
a repayment on demand clause) with
the aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$103,594,000 have
been classified as current liabilities. The
application of HK Int 5 has had no impact
on the reported profit or loss for the
current and prior years.

HK(IFRIC) 17, ‘Distribution of Non-
cash Assets to Owners' (effective on or
after 1 July 2009). The interpretation
was published in November 2008. This
interpretation provides guidance on
accounting for arrangements whereby
an entity distributes non-cash assets to
shareholders either as a distribution of
reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5 has
also been amended to require that assets
are classified as held for distribution only
when they are available for distribution in
their present condition and the distribution
is highly probable.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2010 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although
they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events)

HK(IFRIC) 18, ‘Transfers of Assets from
Customers’, effective for transfer of assets
received on or after 1 July 2009. This
interpretation clarifies the requirements
of IFRSs for agreements in which an entity
receives from a customer an item of
property, plant and equipment that the
entity must then use either to connect
the customer to a network or to provide
the customer with ongoing access to a
supply of goods or services (such as a
supply of electricity, gas or water). In
some cases, the entity receives cash from
a customer that must be used only to
acquire or construct the item of property,
plant, and equipment in order to connect
the customer to a network or provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply
of goods or services (or to do both).

HK(IFRIC) 9, ‘Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’, effective 1 July 2009. This
amendment to HK(IFRIC) 9 requires an
entity to assess whether an embedded
derivative should be separated from a
host contract when the entity reclassifies
a hybrid financial asset out of the ‘fair
value through profit or loss’ category.
This assessment is to be made based on
circumstances that existed on the later of
the date the entity first became a party to
the contract and the date of any contract
amendments that significantly change the
cash flows of the contract. If the entity
is unable to make this assessment, the
hybrid instrument must remains classified
as at fair value through profit or loss in its
entirety.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MRS AR Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEE®HBFHEZ)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RUBEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures IR B ERIEE ()
(continued)
(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations by RZZE—ZF—A—AHFKBZ

FIBRAF 2 B RSB ISR B A
BN B R 2 AT KB RT
BRI R BE(BEULFER
RREARTERRRIRE
HZG55) (8)

mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2010 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although
they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events) (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 16, ‘Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation’ effective 1 July
2009. This amendment states that, in a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, qualifying hedging instruments
may be held by any entity or entities
within the Group, including the foreign
operation itself, as long as the designation,
documentation and effectiveness
requirements of HKAS 39 that relate to
a net investment hedge are satisfied.
In particular, the Group should clearly
document its hedging strategy because of
the possibility of different designations at
different levels of the Group.

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible Assets’,
effective 1 January 2010. The amendment
clarifies guidance in measuring the fair
value of an intangible asset acquired in
a business combination and permits the
grouping of intangible assets as a single
asset if each asset has similar useful
economic lives.

o BE(BERIBHERE
ZEg)F16WIBINE
BEREED IR _FT
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AR e MRS AR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBRREE)

2.1 REEHEE)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures IR B ERIEE ()
(continued)
(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations by RZZE—ZF—A—ABFKBZ

BIBRAF 2 B RSB B SR B Al
N B 2 AT B

BRARBE(BEULFER
RREARTERRRIRE
HZE55) (&)

mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2010 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although
they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events) (continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments), ‘Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment Transactions’,
effective from 1 January 2010. In addition
to incorporating HK(IFRIC) 8, ‘Scope of
HKFRS 2', and HK(IFRIC) 11, "HKFRS 2 —
Group and Treasury Share Transactions’,
the amendments expand on the guidance
in HK(IFRIC) 11 to address the classification
of group arrangements that were not
covered by that interpretation.

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations’. The amendment clarifies that
HKFRS 5 specifies the disclosures required
in respect of non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations. It also clarifies
that the general requirement of HKAS 1
still apply, in particular paragraph 15 (to
achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph
125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of
HKAS 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(©)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted

The Group’s and the parent entity’s assessment
of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below:

e  HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’, issued in
November 2009. This standard is the first
step in the process to replace HKAS 39,
‘Financial Instruments: recognition and
measurement’. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuring
financial assets and is likely to affect
the Group's accounting for its financial
assets. The standard is not applicable until
1 January 2013 but is available for early
adoption. Management is in the process
of making an assessment of their impact
and is not yet in a position to state what
impact, if any, they may have on the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEEHNBEREE)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1 RBEHEE)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

BRI E R FE(E)

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations (0 BEAER-ZE—ZTF—H—
have been issued but are not effective for the HEE 2 B ERE SR ERE
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and N ARIR B BN 7 5] R &S5
have not been early adopted (continued) ERIARRE(E)

HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party Disclosures’,
issued in November 2009. It supersedes
HKAS 24, 'Related Party Disclosures’, issued
in 2003. HKAS 24 (Revised) is mandatory
for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011. Earlier application, in whole or in part, is
permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies
the definition of a related party and
removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all
transactions with the government and
other government-related entities. The
Group and the parent will apply the
revised standard from 1 January 2011.
When the revised standard is applied, the
Group and the parent will need to disclose
any transactions between its subsidiaries
and its associates. The Group is currently
putting systems in place to capture the
necessary information. It is, therefore,
not possible at this stage to disclose the
impact, if any, of the revised standard on
the related party disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted (continued)

o ‘Classification of Rights Issues’ (Amendment
to HKAS 32), issued in October 2009. The
amendment applies to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2010.
Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment addresses the accounting
for rights issues that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the issuer. Provided certain
conditions are met, such rights issues are
now classified as equity regardless of the
currency in which the exercise price is
denominated. Previously, these issues had
to be accounted for as derivative liabilities.
The amendment applies retrospectively
in accordance with HKAS 8 'Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors’. The Group will apply the
amended standard from 1 January 2011.

e Third improvements to HKFRSs (2010) were
issued in May 2010 by the HKICPA. All
improvements are effective in the financial
year of 2011. The Group is currently in the
process of assessing the impact of these
improvements on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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AR e MRS AR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HEE®HBFHEZ)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RUBEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures IR B ERIEE ()
(continued)
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations (0 BEEMER=Z—ZTF—H—

AR MRFERHAERR
WAREERTRAN 2 F75] M AEIERT
QAR (')

have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted (continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity Instruments’,
effective 1 July 2010. The interpretation
clarifies the accounting by an entity
when the terms of a financial liability
are renegotiated and result in the entity
issuing equity instruments to a creditor of
the entity to extinguish all or part of the
financial liability (debt for equity swap).
It requires a gain or loss to be recognised
in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments should be measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The Group will apply the
interpretation from 1 January 2011. It is
not expected to have any impact on the
Group or the parent entity’'s financial
statements.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(@)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted (continued)

e 'Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’ (amendments to HK (IFRIC)
—Int 14). The amendments correct an
unintended consequence of HK (IFRIC)
—Int 14, '"HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their interaction’.
Without the amendments, entities are
not permitted to recognise as an asset
some voluntary prepayments for minimum
funding contributions. This was not
intended when HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 was
issued, and the amendments correct this.
The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning 1 January 2011. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments
should be applied retrospectively to the
earliest comparative period presented. The
Group will apply these amendments for
the financial reporting period commencing
on 1 January 2011.

. HKAS 12 (Amendment), ‘Income Taxes'.
The amendment provides an exception
to the principles in the existing standard
for measuring deferred income tax assets
or liabilities when investment property is
measured at fair value. The amendment
will be effective for annual periods on or
after 1 January 2012. Management is in
the process of making an assessment of
their impact and is not yet in a position to
state what impact, if any, they may have
on the Group’s financial statements.

4= A B

775 R M =

[0 =

2

EEEBRREE)

2.1

WREEE)

BEHRZEE R (E)

(0)

ERHGER-_F—FF—H—
ARt MRFERHAERER
WARIR R TRANZ H75T M AEIERT
ERIANZE(E)

o [REESERZEAMK
R (5B (BRYEHR
TREBLZRE) —RES
1458 Z{ERT) » %IERTIE
ETHEBE(BRMBERSE
REZES)-REF14
HIEE G ERE9
S—ARERMEERE
BEESERKNAEER
1R IFTER R B AN 2 18
R o INMELFER - B
BIARKEESHRZ
B BRI TR SRR RERAE (A
BE - £ 58 (BRMK

TREBELZEe) -RE
F1AFEMET - REIE
anitt - FZAEETE SRR
BIE > LEEFTN-F
e = R
EHRAR - XRFRF
FER - LLFER]RENE
RRM 2512 &P LB
- NEEE KU FERT
ERR=F-—F-H—
Ak 2 S B -

o BEEGRERE125R(E
AR FEH] - R E
MEDARFEFEZ
BRT - %ETHREE
AP B ERIEEH
BESABZRAUELH
%o RIBRITR_F—_F
—A—BERIARZF
EHRER - BEEEIERE
AHEREERI 2R E &
REERI AR FIER] AT B
AEBHBHRRELLZ
TE(WE) -

Annual Report 2010 F¥k 65



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(0

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted (continued)

° Since October 2010, the IASB has
published Amendments to HKFRS 7,
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures on
Derecognition’, Additions to HKFRS 9,
‘Financial Instruments — Classification
and Measurement’ for Financial Liability
Accounting’ and Amendments to HKAS 12,
‘Income Taxes’ on Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets. Management is in
the process of making an assessment of
their impact and is not yet in a position to
state what impact, if any, they may have
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBREEE)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

2.2 REWRE(E)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued) (@) HBLREI(E)

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income
(Note 2.6).
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e IS AR MY RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBRREZ)

24 SHEER(E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued) b) XZRAERE)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEE®HBREE2)

(continued)

24 SHEER(E)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise offices. Leasehold land
classified as financial lease and all other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as
finance lease

— Buildings

— Leasehold improvements

Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

20 to 50 years

2 to 10 years

(over the period of leases)
8 to 10 years

4 10 10 years

4 10 10 years

— Machinery
— Furniture and equipment
— Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within “other gains, net” in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in ‘intangible assets’.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured on
initial recognition at cost. Mining right acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Mining right
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining right over its estimated useful life of 30
years.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Exploration
and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities in relation
to commercial and technical feasibility studies,
and expenditure incurred to secure further
mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure
incurred prior to acquiring legal rights to
explore an area is written off as incurred. When
it can be reasonably ascertained that a mining
property is capable of commercial production,
exploration and evaluation costs are transferred
to mining right and are amortised based on the
accounting policy as stated in “Mining right”
above. If any project is abandoned during the
evaluation stage, the total expenditure thereon
will be written off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets (continued)
(d) Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks
are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

(e) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready
to use — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

4= A B

775 R M =

[0 =

2

EEEBRREE)

2.6

2.7

BLRE(E)
) ZHEREZE

BRBEEHEZKANRBRER
SERCZEME - AT IR
WIREBOER AT A E R F B
THEHARE -

(e) BN

BHEEREGREDRIEREER
MEZFERZKASETE
2N BEARATIR MG R R 2
FH+F AR -

HELF BELAFRRFMERE
REZREE

AERAER cEE - PINEENL
BEBRANMERNBELEE-TT#
i WEFETHERAE - BER
BAFREEANEREEZ FF K
R BB - ZAEITRERE &
BEERILEERMERLEK
Bl& R ZRER - AIREESER
BEXFER O EKALEEREE
ZEBEE - BEHERE - BETIZ
AERRERRSRE 2 REEN R
CReELEM) - BEIMIERE
ZHFPBEENSERE BB
BEIREZ AIREN ©

Annual Report 2010 £3k 75



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 Bf 75 #5 3% B =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE®HBREE2)

(continued)

2.8 MBEEEE)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement 282 HERREE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date (the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset). Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains, net” in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidation income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheets when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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€§§ BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine
that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or obligor;

e A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

e The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

e |t becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

e The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

e Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBRREE)

210 MEEEREE)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

@) BRI BE (&)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss) is removed
from equity and recognised in the separate
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the separate consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the separate consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of accounts and other receivables
is described in Note 2.13.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B RS HRR IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EE®HBREE2)
(continued)
2.11 Investment properties 211 BEYME

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and office buildings, is held for
long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases
concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition at cost investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the consolidated income statement as part of a fair
value gains or losses in other gains, net.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MRS AR Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBREEE)

2.13 Accounts and other receivables

2.13 FEBIRIA R K& B

Accounts receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of accounts and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
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initially at fair value and subsequently measured at EEER - HBAUTERARER
amortised cost using the effective interest method, BESURR AR E B T o
less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 214 Bl&RB&EED

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts (if any). In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
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shown within borrowings in current liabilities. o
2.15 Share capital 2.15 X

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.16 Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

EEEBREE2)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.18 ZEREEFRFIRE(Z)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of each reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12
months after the end of each reporting period
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

2.20 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (continued)

2.21

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
value-added tax, business tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
(a) Sale of goods — income from sale of goods
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to customers.

Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

(c) Service income — service income is recognised
in the accounting periods in which the services
are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

BRI BREE )

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.22 R (&)

(d) Interest income — interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

() Dividend income - dividend income is
recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.
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W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B RS R I R

is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

2.25 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest-rate risk, cash flow interest-rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEEHREIBEZ)
(continued)
2.24 Dividend distribution 2.24 R %Ik
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBEEZ)

3.1 MBRBRERE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Risk management is carried out by a treasury
committee under policies approved by the board of
directors. The committee identifies, evaluates and

B & E%Eﬁﬁﬁi,\aﬂiﬁf%%%
HAEZBRRNT - WELZESE
HEBRNSEBMN I ERAE E

hedges financial risks in close co-operation with ST SH RS q:/ﬁjjfkﬂgﬁ o B
the Group’s operating units. The board provides ERMEERARETESETRA - I

principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments, and investing of excess

liquidity.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 80% (2009: 87 %)
of the Group’s turnover are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making
the sale, whilst approximately 13%
(2009: 10%) of costs are denominated
in the units’ functional currency. The

ROMNERR - MXRER - FEE
2 PTASmMITERETESRT
A7 RAEERSRBESELIR
BERBHIETHR
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Group manages the foreign exchange Eiﬁ%ﬂ“‘fé%ﬁﬁéiziﬁ
exposure arising from its normal course SREEESHEERIKE
of business activities and investments in REES  UEEAFE
foreign operations by funding its local BiRED RIREREINE
operations and investments through cash BEEZINER - B1R

flow generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and forward
exchange contracts are used for hedging
purposes when required.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") is pegged to the United
States dollar (“US$"), the Group'’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk is
minimal.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in
Chinese Renminbi (RMB) exchange rate,

EBZIERINER B KR
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with all other variables held constant, of HERBEHRREAR
the Group's profit after income tax (due to B SR (A IR B 2 B
changes in the fair value of monetary assets o

and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEEREE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) () HNERE(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) profit after  (Decrease)
in RMB income tax in equity
RFrBRE
AR%® ERfEm/ #28/Wn
EH/(FB) (WD) (WD)

% HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BWTT

2010 —E-E%
If HK$ weakens against RMB METRARKEH 10 (11,787) (11,787)
If HKS$ strengthens against RMB & TR AR &g (10) 11,787 11,787
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) profit after (Decrease)
in RMB income tax in equity
BRETISHIf&
ARE AR  ESEmS
EH/(TR) (R) (R)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
2009 —ZETNEF
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT AR EESS 10 (2,302) (2,302)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB 8T A REER (10) 2,302 2,302

Annual Report 2010 F3k 93



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group
is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as
trading equity investments (Note 15) as at
31 December 2010. To manage its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities,
the Group diversifies its portfolio. The Group's
listed investments are listed in Hong Kong
and overseas are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments
with all other variables held constant and
after any impact on income tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) TEERE(E)
(i)  Price risk (continued) (i) BEREGE)
Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying Increase/
amount (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity profit after  (Decrease)
investment income tax in equity

BERR RASRE
IREE ERFENS  ES8m
&/ (#P) (WD) (WD)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTRT BT _ETT

2010 —E-E5§
5% increase in equity price BEEE LFA5% 457 382 382
5% decrease in equity price BEEETES% (457) (382) (382)
Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying Increase/
amount (Decrease) in Increase/
of equity  profit after (Decrease)
investment income tax in equity
BRAKRE  BRAGHE
IREE  BMEMS  E=EmS
i,/ (i) CR) (R2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
2009 —TThEF
5% increase in equity price IRABH EF5% 631 526 526
5% decrease in equity price BRA(BIE T PE5% (631) (526) (526)

Annual Report 2010 £¥k 95



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. During 2010 and
2009, the Group’s borrowings at variable
rate were denominated in US$, RMB and
HK$.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit after
income tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERIBEHEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) M5B (E)
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (i) FersRALEHER
(continued) 4 (12 )
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in  profit after  (Decrease)
basis points income tax in equity
FRERFRE
FIEER RFEM/ #28n
8/, (RD) (WD) (D)

HK$'000 HK$'000
- BT

2010 —E-E5
uss$ E 100 (2,808) (2,808)
RMB AR® 100 (1,172) (1,172)
HK$ BT 100 (1,008) (1,008)
uss$ BT (100) 2,808 2,808
RMB AR® (100) 1,172 1,172
HK$ BT (100) 1,008 1,008

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in profit after (Decrease)
basis points income tax in equity
BRETEHi1&

FREZ  AFENS EXENS
#m/ (Rd) () (R
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

2009 —TENEF
us$ e 100 (830) (830)
RMB AR 100 (873) (873)
HK$ BIT 100 (IS 1i55) s
us$ =7 (100) 830 830
RMB ONES S (100) 873 873
HK$ BT (100) 1,155 (155
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, due from associates, due from
a related company and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are disclosed in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 Bf 75 #5 3% B =%

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBEEZ)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,

© mBETERE)

RIBE SO MARREER 2 5K
8 AEERHE B BRRMH

based on the contractual undiscounted BEZERRINT ¢
payments, was as follows:
Carrying
amount Total More than
asper  contractual  On demand 1 year but
consolidated undiscounted or within less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
ity 2i#
REARRZ AR EEXE —FUL
REE HeREER —FRiE EREEM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT ERTT ERTT BRTT
2010 —E-Z%
Borrowings HR® 1,378,444 1,383,528 1,004,066 379,462
Due to related companies RAELRRE 24,079 24,079 24,079 -
Bills and accounts payable Bt R R M fIRTR 354,726 354,726 354,726 -
Other payables and accruals HEEEfIEEREHER 171,530 177,530 177,530 -
Guarantee for general banking BREATDRTHEMEY
facilities granted to an associate ~ ZiEfR - 13,800 13,800 -
Guarantees given to banks for EEANMRBAE
mortgage facilities granted to the ~ HIRERMMET
buyers of the Group's properties  {EHZERF - 90 90 -
1,934,779 1,953,753 1,574,291 379,462
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBEEZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBERZ)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) wEEcEREE)
Carrying
amount Total More than
as per contractual On demand 1 year but
consolidated  undiscounted or within less than
balance sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years
G B

BEARRZ  MAMEZ EEXH —FN0E
kEE RoREEE  -FREE  EREER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT BETT AETT

2009 % k2
Borrowings B 959,156 973,440 676,720 296,720
Due to associates REENRZA 24,079 24,079 24,079 -
Bills and accounts payable ES LR 359,049 359,049 359,049 -
Other payables and accruals HUEMRBRESER 42,499 42,499 42,499 -
Guarantee for general banking RBERARRTREED

facilities granted to an associate ZHER - 21,730 21,730 -
Guarantees given to banks for REENXEEE

mortgage facilities granted to the REEZ MRS

buyers of the Group's properties fEll 2 1R - 86 86 -

1,384,783 1,420,883 1,124,163 296,720
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity (including share capital,
reserves, retained profits, non-controlling interests
and other loans from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet).

During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2009, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2010 and
2009 were as follows:

iR e B RS R I R

3 MERREHEE)

3.2 EERBER

AEBERESZ BRRREARSE
BRFBREE 2R URRRER
E# RECEDFE AGRKH
i RERERESERAREE
ARPRA o

RERAHBEELRERE  A5EH
SREARRKNBREZEE [
BREFEE S LBEITHRND

AEBIZERLEHBRALL RS
BRI o bbb RAZET5HRERR AR
BEEAGE - BEFRREER
(BREEBEEABRMIITZR
BRIERDEF)RAE LRSS
BYEHRTE - KEABRRABEMN
BBy (BRGEEEARRK
FROREIA - i - REB AT
TR AR an N P B A B SR IR AR AR IR
MEEER) °

R-F—FF  AEEZRBR
MR B AR B R RER
90% @ B_TTAFHERF - R=F
U S ) e S i [
B2z B HBBALL RN

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Total borrowings BB 1,378,444 959,156
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 5 : & RIRESEEY (370,813) (265,936)
Net debt B&7%5 58 1,007,631 693,220
Total equity BREZS 2,261,266 1,588,051
Adjusted capital P T I 2,321,005 1,592,489
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B ARG A b & 43% 44%
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2010.

AR B RS HRR IR

MERBRER(2)
LFEM

TREGEETEDTARFETE
ZEBMTEA - BFMZERWT

FEEENAEERRENS -
MR (E CRETE) (B—4) °

BRE — AT BRI REN - B
EXBENTEX(BIER)X
A (B ERIASMT ) BEE
FisAEBE(E R -

WIRB A BIE TS BIEME
EMEEXARBAERT
ABRBAE) (E=4) °

TRENFEEANR _ZT—TF+ =
A=t—BUAFEAENEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& B B=8 #oE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets HE BT #%Trt E%Trt #B%Tr
Financial assets at fair value BT EFEBIBRTVIELD
through profit or loss MEZE
- listed equity securities - LtHRFESF 9,137 - - 9,137
Contingent consideration EHASHEERN
for a business combination R (E - - 349,707 349,707
9,137 - 349,707 358,844

The following table presents the Group's assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2009.

Level 1
F—k
HK$'000
Assets HE BETT
Financial assets at fair value  1RAF{EFE BB FIIRE
through profit or loss MBEE
- listed equity securities — ETRAES 12,610

TRENFTEBR _TTNF+ =
A=t—BUAFEAENEE -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B FE=M FR]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB
- - 12,610
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

e  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

e For an option-based derivative, the fair value
is estimated using option pricing model (for
example, the Black-Scholes option pricing
model).

775 R M =

MERBRER (2

3.3 DFEMERHGE)

HERMBEEZeMI A AT
BERNERFEARR TS RET
B o WREBEAID S RREHBRRS
5 - KA SRA EXSE
B BRERGEENEERERE
B BZSERERBZAFRANEE
EANEEREHHLERS @ Alzm
BREER - AKBHMBE
EFATMSRELRITER - 2%
TEBFE -

VIERBRMEEECERTA
(WBIRBITETR) 2 A FER
REERMTEE - ZFHERMIA
RAREERTAESHAERSR
MZEE - HHERRE [T AK
FERR BRI - IR R FEFE—A
TANMAEABAEBEIERE
% RIZBEITABE -

i — @2k % EE R AEILIER I
AEEmMSEEBETE  AZATA
BE=R -

RARE T AELAENRER
ERAMTRE -

s BUTARAMSRERRS
ERE -

. HTH - ANARRSTE
S - BABEEHERT A
2 AT -

o BUBBEAERIITETA
mE - ERHETRAERE
FHEEA (e N5 — T B AT
PR EER ) fhET -

Annual Report 2010 3R 103




W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBEERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEGEH(Z)
All the resulting fair value estimates are included i A mEES AT E G (KA
in level 1 except for contingent consideration for a ARt 2 £ 5AHEE 2 AR
business combination as explained below. B)HIETAE—F o
There were no significant transfers of financial assets RATLEERI B E—BRE—
between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy H B EE N EETRE o
classifications.
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREBIWEZ_ZE—ZFFE+_A
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2010. =St+—HULIEEZE=HTEE
@J o
Contingent

consideration
at fair value

BROTFEHA
ZBARRE
HK$'000
BT
Opening balance F A 458 -
Recognised upon acquisition RULEE KT B A Al B HER
of subsidiaries (Note 37) (Bt7£37) 314,867
Gains recognised in profit or loss RIERER 2 W=
(Note 26) (Biit26) 34,840
Closing balance G N 349,707
Total gains for the year including FAK =R
in profit or loss for assets held at the end ~ B¥ER RS B EAREH
of the reporting period BELAE 34,840
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(@)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.6. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates (Note 9).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations, taking into
account latest market information and past
experience. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

AR A B IS R I R

4 MBEHEHERIER

RE A H G & RS ARG - WREBE
REBMETHRRETHE  BREER
B THREAB B EIRKEFrOTEA -

4.1 BBFHEERER

AEEEARRIE L B RMMBRER © P
BHerrfEnEER  RoghR
HERGERER - RAKSERT
B B ENEEMNA ENIREE
fEH EARAEN B MR
To

@) BEREGE

REBBBERIE2.6 95T
BRSEREELTHIERE
EITRIE c RS EEEM 2T
WEEBEREFEAEENE
EETE  BRRTEAENRGHE
(Bff7E9) -

Yx - HEERRENHE L
R EHEREITE

(b)

EESEHFLRABRNERR
IRE{E ] BE AR @B - ZB5L
WME - BEEREMEEL
o Bt b A AEE TRV E R
A o EERIHIMRNBERL
B xR - MELERE - HE
TR £ ifE AN R KR EE
BRRERBEAEMETE -
I FAHE MG ER Z N A
RfEH -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(c)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of properties is
normally the current prices in an active market
for comparable properties. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences, by reference to independent
valuations; and

(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices.

If information on current or recent prices of
investment properties is not available, the fair
values of investment properties are determined
using discounted cash flow valuation
techniques. The Group uses assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing
at end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions underlying
management’s estimation of fair value are
those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void
periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are
regularly compared to actual market yield data,
and actual transactions by the Group and those
reported by the market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties
(continued)

The expected future market rentals are determined
on the basis of current market rentals for
similar properties in the same location and
condition.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions
in the periods in which such determination are
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses
are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax in the periods in which such estimate
is changed.

AR e MRS AR Y RE

4 FREREEERMEE)

4.1 MBEHEERME®(E)

(c)

(@

REYFE N FEOEEE)

FEHIR R T 5 2 IR IRAEAR L
YRR — B AR E B
MISHESETE

P30 RAFAL P37

AEETEETBEREBHN
PR - EEEV AR ESER
BN ENERE - T8
EMEXRHE - £—REKB
B BAZXSMEAEMY
R BB AR B 75 T T # R R RE
B o L FFHFMREHBER
RESYCHENSRETE - bt
EFERRTEFLHEEEY
e B FfT 45 3¢ 0 3 P 15 A0 33
e

EEEEBRRARKAIEFER
RIREN - CEREZERATIE
BUEANA  BREZERER
ERBREEREHEESRK
R - KRB RINRGE
it RERGEBAEEN
HRAFEELCHBREEM
FTISTHAMER
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4 MBEEHERIEZ)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s 4.2 ERFEESHRENOREEIE

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before
income tax for the year. The information provided to the
directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is organised into four major operating units: (i)
steel trading; (ii) steel processing; (iii) mineral resources;
(iv) commercial property; and (v) other segment
comprises, principally, management services business.

SERE

TREBRRECREERARRIES
g  BEEFEAEENRERE - AT
HEENDEER - ERFPISREE

LESREIRTE TRREDHEB

BEEERAFERAEHAAN, (&
B RFHARE D BBHIRAE - AESHSE
HMEMERRA M HRRERAENT
B2

ANESE RO {EE EEIBEEMARK ¢ ()il
SE S ¢ ()T 5 (i) BEBIR : (v)
EMEFHE  RWETHEEBEER
EEERT ©

Turnover recognised during the year is as follows: INEERER Y SEFMT ¢
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AETT
Sale of goods HE 6,037,071 3,219,932
Rental income HEWA 27,020 19,774
Service income Rl 745 e A 15,983 17,008
6,080,074 3,256,714
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group had a new segment — mineral resources
during the year ended 31 December 2010 upon the
completion of the acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals Limited
on 31 March 2010. The segment results for the year

ended 31 December 2010 are as follows:

4= A B

775 R M R

[0 =

SEEHE(E)

BER _T—TF= A=+—BHKHETa
Xin Minerals Limited 5212 + ANEBERE,
E-ETFE+-_A=1+—HILEER
B RBREERNON BHE_ZT—ZTHF
+— A=+—HI-FENDIEEIT :

Steel Steel Mineral  Commercial
trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
EEvE) #AEmI WERE WEELE it FAE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#RTT ERTT ERTT EETT ERTT #RTT #RTT
Total segment sales NEEEES 5,597,618 405,660 36,720 27,134 16,651 - 6,083,783
Inter-segment sales AUEEE (3,294) - - (114) (301) - (3,709)
Sales to external customers  $5EFINHEE 5,594,324 405,660 36,720 27,020 16,350 - 6,080,074
Operating profit/(loss) before &3t TR HE=
below items B/ (B8) 43,288 9,347 (5,603) 18,821 (1,805)  (31,189) 32,859
Expenses on acquisition of ~ WEERIBAF
subsidiaries T - - (5,298) - - - (5,298)
Fair value gains on investment % E¥1£ 10 F&
properties Wi - - - 62,866 - - 62,366
Fair value gains on financial  RATERBER
assets at fair value through  JIREVEIBEE Y
profit or loss AT ENE - - - - - 1,039 1,039
Fair value gains on other  HBEKARE
financial assets AERE - - - - - 34,840 34,840
Share option expenses BRES S - - - - - (9,548) (9,548)
Operating profit/(loss) mEEt /(B8 43,288 9,347 (10,901) 81,687 (1,805) (4,858) 116,758
Finance costs BERA (21,613) (4,313) (4,007) (9,011) - (707) (39,651)
Gain on distribution of shares 2RES& AR
in an associate et - - - - - 501,897 501,897
Share of profits of associates Fr/EEs4 A AR - - - - - 7,653 7,653
Segment results AHEE 21,675 5,034 (14,908) 72,676 (1,805 503,985 586,657
Income tax expense iy (22,393)
Profit for the year FERT 564,264
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEIEEE)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE—_ZTZNFE+-_A=+—RHIEE
2009 are as follows: B SRR
Steel Steel  Commercial
trading  processing property Others  Unallocated Group
MEES  HENI  BERME -4 AAE &[E

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTT BRI A%Tr BRI A%t BRIk

Total segment sales DEHELS 2,890,369 349,612 19,998 18,431 = A
Inter-segment sales DHEEE (21,008) - (224) (464) = (21,696)
Sales to external customers  HE FHBRE 2,869,361 349,612 19,774 17,967 - 3,256,714

Operating profit/(loss) before K&t FillJE B LS

below items BRl/ (B8) 29,341 (14,606) 23,510 = (27,305) 10,940
Fair value gains of investment & A# % AT (E
properties e - - 39,085 - - 39,085

Fair value gains of financial ~ RATERBER
assets at fair value through ~ SIREIBIEAEZ

profit or loss AFENE - - = = 17,202 17,202
Operating profit/(loss) BaBH/(BR) 29,341 (14,606) 62,595 - (10,103) 67,227
Finance costs BERA (12,673) (7,352) (7,719) - (486) (28,230)
Share of losses of associates ~ FrfEE &1\ AEE - - - - (18,932) (18,932)
Segment results s 16,668 (21,958) 54,876 = (29,521) 20,065
Income tax expense SRS (12,401)
Profit for the year FEBA 7,664
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with pan=ilis ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁé 25 EEBH2RE
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to KETE=EERITIHEREE °

third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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iR e B RS R I R

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEEE)
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each DEEIE e R R S EREEL 2 B F (&
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate B)MW A ABIERSIRE Y ¥R Y - B
expenses including directors’ salaries, share of profits/ BIEEEHS  THEBEATIEN (&
(losses) of associates, fair value gains on financial assets 1B)  BAFEEBERIIRNTBEE
at fair value through profit or loss, fair value gains on ZATEKZ BT EREEAEAEK
other financial assets, share option expenses and gain on 5 BREREY ER S IREE S D TG E
distribution of shares in an associate. F) o
Other segment information HEEeomEE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December R-ZE—=FF+—-F=+—HHHIEE
2010 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to EMABUREBE-—ZT—ZTHF+ - A
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2010 =+—HIEFENITE - B8 RIERIE
are as follows: EEVEEMT ¢
Steel Steel Mineral ~ Commercial
trading  processing  resources property Others  Unallocated Group
nER AEmI WEEE WRERE RE 9K ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EWTT ERTL ERTL ERTL ERTT ERTT EWTT
Assets aE 1869508 271,85 920441 779,070 1967 568,878 4,411,810
Liabilities 88 1066768 228984 407,737 178,345 7861 260,849 2,150,544
Depreciation bk 1,028 5,556 1,490 1,299 1,020 1,583 11,976
Amortisation B - 280 5,267 37 - - 5,584
Additions to non-current assets  SERIEREEE 5,115 39 884,405 26,508 173 - 916,240
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2009 and depreciation, amortisation and additions to
non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2009
are as follows:

Steel Steel
trading  processing
HEES #EmI
HK$'000 HK$'000

SEEHE(E)
HESBEHE)

R=BBAE+=A=+-AHHBE
ENAEARBE-STAF+=A
=+ BLEFNRE - BHRETE
ROAEMT -

Commercial
property Others  Unallocated Group
HERME AP AAR £

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ABTT  A%Tr  B%Tn BT A%Tn  ABTx
Assets BE 1,657,938 329,820 704,196 8,138 398,188 3,098,280
Liabilities 8 775,609 336,883 186,958 6,469 204310 1,510,229
Depreciation e 798 5,994 1,859 1,765 1713 12,129
Amortisation B - 368 36 - 20 424
Additions to non-current assets ERFEIREEE 156,035 775 39,311 387 3 196,511

Segment assets exclude financial instruments, deferred
income tax assets, investments in associates, income
tax refundable and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, corporate borrowings and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

DHEELTEREHMTE - BIEMF
MEE  BERFRE - AJREMEH
REEARDRBRRNREREEE At
BENEELHAER -

DHMEBELTERELHSEHEE &
NAEHR EEERRETASEAR
ANEREE  ARAEAEETAE
I o
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 93TBIHZE)
Geographical information HWEZFH
The Group’s business segments operate in four main RNEB R ER» 207 M E £ 2 i [E &
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a & AN FEFENERFAERE -

worldwide basis.

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT
Sales (by location of customers) SHE (IRERME S LE
— Mainland China — B 2,601,614 1,937,641
— Asia (other than Mainland China — 25}
and Hong Kong) (TEEPEREE) 1,728,766 686,979
— Europe — B 1,102,346 468,903
— Others = i 647,348 163,191
6,080,074 23,258, 7/l
Non-current assets ERBEE
— Mainland China —rh 1,654,099 695,487
- Hong Kong — B8 136,450 228,984
— Europe — B 1,151 138
- Other —HE 14 =
1,791,714 924,609
The non-current asset information above is based on the LA EIEREB EEREEMEEE D
location of assets and excludes financial instruments, BrEEEBMTA  BEMSHEER
deferred income tax assets and investments in associates. B ARIRE o
For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the AEES mes SRS N o Sebe e e IR
Group does not have any single significant customer with ST —HLEFETEREERNE-FPR
the transaction value above 10% of the external sales. SZWNEBBAERZHKA10% °
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6 HEXHMRIHERE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use ANEFEMRE 1 % - i AR RES
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and EBMNEERES  HERESES T
their net book amounts are analysed as follows: N
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
A_E—-BF R-TITIF
+=A TZA RIZZNE
Sar—= Sk feas e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated)

(&&5) (&g831)

Outside Hong Kong, held on: HEEBIMNEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEATEHNEE 11,163 15,460 15,864
Leasehold land and land use rights with aggregate TR S e e S S it At
carrying amount of approximately HK$6,321,000 as at 31 Er kM ERAEAREELNS
December 2010 (2009: HK$15,460,000) were pledged 62 000D, (T en o
to secure against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings 15,460,0007T) B A&n & BIR1TERIE
(see Note 22). IR (R FIEE 22) °
Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights MHE i & T E AR FE R E SN
during the year is as follows: A8
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
(restated)
(gE5)
At 1 January, as previously reported 7 — B — B (#05E#151%R) 77,768 79,416
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 HEANB AT ENE 175
(Amendment) (&3] Ky T 2R (62,308) (63,552)
At 1 January, as restated R—A—B(K&E%)) 15,460 15,864
Exchange differences VE R =R 143 -
Additions BN 4,813 -
Amortisation of prepaid operating FEff&iEHRE
lease payments TRIE B (385) (404)
Disposals HE (8,868) =
At 31 December PN = e et 11,163 15,460

Annual Report 2010 3R 115



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MRS AR MY RE

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 UE- BIRRMG
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold
long-term improve- Furniture and Motor
finance lease Buildings ments Machinery equipment vehicles Total
RERELH BF BREE B8 GARRR L ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BT AETT BT EEIT BB
At 1 January 2009 RZZFENE-A-A
Cost as previously reported RA(AAFIE) s 108,240 16,05 72,334 13,04 11,400 21,441
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 SEREBSENZ TR
(Amendment) CHES LS 82,582 - - - - - 82,582
Cost as restated RA(RES]) 82,582 108,240 16,225 72,334 13,242 11,400 304,023
Accumulated depreciation, ZiE
a previously reported (%A51R) = (35,462) (11,463) (56,292) (10,095) (8.871) (122,183)
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 SEREBSENZ TR
(Amendment) CHEIEEF (19,030) - - - - - (19,030)
Accumulated depreciation, as restated ZiHTE(EE5) (19,030) (35,462) (11,463) (56,292) (10,095) (8.871) (141,213)
Net book amount, & restated IREH(E(EE5) 63,552 0,778 4762 16,042 3147 2529 162,810
Year ended BEZTINE
31 December 2009 TZA=T-BILER
Opening net book amount, BORAFE
as previously reported (fn%A3IR) - 72,778 4762 16,042 3,147 2,529 99,258
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 ARMEREIEREI TS
(Amendment) CHES kS 63,552 - - - - - 63,552
Opening net book amount, as restated HOREZELE]) 63,552 72,778 4762 16,042 3,147 2,529 162,810
Exchange differences EiEE - (98) - - 2 - (96)
Additions b= it = 110 94 642 458 1,304
Disposals HE - - (89) = (1) = (100)
Depreciation charge & (1,244) (3.468) (2,219 (3,149) (981) (1,068) (12,129)
Closing net book amount HARETE 62,308 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,199 1,919 151,789
At 31 December RZFENE
2009 A=A
Cost as previously reported KA - 108,142 16,246 72,428 13,481 9,247 219,544
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 HRPERGIEAEI TS
(Amendment) (BETA)HAR 82,582 - - - - - 82,582
Costas restated A E)) 82,582 108,142 16,246 72428 13481 947 302,126
Accumulated depreciation, ZitinE
as previously reported (McRimsh) - (38,930) (13,682) (59,441) (10,682) (7.329) (130,063)
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 ARPERGIERE TS
(Amendment) (BETR)HAR (20,274) - - - - - (20,274)
Accumulated depreciation, as restated A E(RES) (20274) (38,930) (13,682) (59,441) (10,682) (7,328) (150,337)
Net hook amount, as restated REFEEES) 62,308 69,212 2,564 12,987 2,799 1919 151,789
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 PDE BRRBIEE)
Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under Leasehold Funiture
long-term improve- and Motor  Construction
finance lease Buildings ments  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
RERRN #if
MRERLY #F HrkE B3  RARRG L] ERIE a8

HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT BRI ERTT ERTT ERTT

Year ended HE-2-ZF

31 December 2010 tZRA=T-HLFE
Opening net book amount, BEEHE

as previously reported (M%aT51%) - 69,212 2,564 12,981 2,799 1,919 = 89,481
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 A AL

{Amendment) FITRBTR)HRE 62,308 - - - - - - 62,308
Opening net book amount, as restated  EEE (S5 62,308 69,212 2,564 12,087 2,799 1,919 - 151,789
Exchange differences BRER - 1,214 4 309 55 Il 5,931 7,684
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37)  WEHBAFH37) - )] - 8,683 20 1,239 584 10,773
Additions 5 - = 2907 3 1,488 1,399 288,449 204,004
Revaluation Bf - 21,665 - - - - - 21,665
Transfer to investment properties EUERENE - (#1,226) - - - - - (41,226
Disposals HE - (10422) (1,609) (2,025) (249) e = (14,305)
Depreciation charge i (1,204) (3.429) (969) (4,081) (1,081) (1.212) - (11,976)
Closing net hook amount SEEATE 61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 3,252 3416 294,964 418,698
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%%

= HE et
Cost TS 82,582 66,544 9,283 80,689 13524 11,661 294,964 559,247
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (21,518) (29,443) (6.326) (64,745) (10,272) (8,245) - (140549)
Net book amount R 61,064 37,101 2,957 15,944 3,252 3416 294,964 418,698
Depreciation expense of approximately HK$7,066,000 MEZAERLBHT,066,000T( ==
(2009: HK$5,658,000) has been expensed in cost of T N4 - B%5,658,0007T ) 5T A 85 E K
sales, HK$1,036,000 (2009: HK$798,000) in selling AR - B #1,036,0007C( — TR NE ¢
and distribution expenses and HK$3,874,000 (2009: B H5798,0007C)Ft AHE R DIHER
HK$5,673,000) in general and administrative expenses. MmB % 3,874,000 C( —EENF : B
5,673,0007T) BIFt A—MRRITHER -

At 31 December 2010, leasehold land in Hong Kong RZZE-—ZFE+-H=1+—8  REH
under long-term finance lease and buildings with KA ERE Tt RIEFIRAED B
carrying amount of approximately HK$61,064,000 75161,064,0007T ( Z 2T NF - B
(2009: HK$62,308,000) and HK$33,642,000 (2009: 62,308,0007T ) & # #33,642,0007T (=
HK$63,570,000), respectively, were pledged to secure TTNF : #B%63,570,0007T) B AED
against certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (see Note SBERITEREER(RMFE22) ©
290):
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 DE BBRRHBEE)
Motor vehicles and machinery include the following EEEARET ST T E iR & sR
amounts where the Group is a lessee under finance BETMEEE :
leases:
At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
R_B—BF RZZTTNF
+=A SRt
=ale=iH =iyl
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cost — capitalised finance leases KA —-ERNLERE 6,765 7,149
Accumulated depreciation B E (2,258) (2,572)
Net book amount R FE 4,507 Y
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 J|EME
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Beginning of the year F 1) 601,018 B2 2i6
Additions b7 26,468 39,207
Fair value gains (included in other AP EWZE(BEEET
gains, net) (see Note 26) Wz F58) (2 H1i#26) 62,866 39,085
Exchange differences PEH =58 25,352 =
Transfer from property, B - #ER
plant and equipment B LEYN 41,226 =
Disposals HE (32,942) &
End of the year FR 723,988 601,018
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the buildings
of the Group were reclassified as investment properties.
For the transfer from buildings to investment properties,
the difference between the fair value of the buildings at
the date of transfer and its carrying amount, amounting
to approximately HK$21,665,000, was recognised in
the other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2010.

The investment properties were revalued on an open
market basis at 31 December 2010 by independent,
professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
net book amounts are analysed as follows:

wEMERE)

HE-_Z—ZF+-_H=+—HBIF
B AEEEEFETIEAKRED
¥ EFEBREREVER  2EFTE
EEANAFEMELATANIREEZ M
B ZFA A ABEE21,665,0007T @ BEE
ZE=—rm—raiEaes B = qr—[a| léefEi A
TEREBAFRER -

RAMEE=F B+ = A=+
B B 32 A R A B B R
AR AR A FRIE AR E R -

AEBEREYEN RS IZEIREFE
DATEAR -

At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
R_E—F RZZEZNF
+=A =
=-L=H ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Mainland China i
— held on leases of over 50 years —BERTFH
LA EWEE - DT DT,
— held on leases of between 10 —-BE+ER+58
and 50 years HAHE 723,988 578,291
723,988 601,018

At 31 December 2010, investment properties of
approximately HK$647,473,000 (2009: HK$550,613,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 22).

R-ZE—ZTE+-F=+—H 8EYD
XA 1647,473,000T (ZEZEHF ¢
7#5#550,613,0000T) B TR - EAXR
SEZRITRERAR(RHE22) -
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EEEE
Exploration ~ Domain names,
and  trademark and
evaluation computer
Goodwill Mining right assets software Total
@%& 54 BER
g it HHEE B &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT RETTL BETTL BETTL BETTL
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-A-A
Cost R - - - 193 193
Accumulated amortisation and ZiEER
impairment RE = = - (43) (43)
Net hook amount EEFE - - - 150 150
Year ended HE-ZINE
31 December 2009 T-B=1-HIIFE
Opening net book amount BREEE - - - 150 150
Impairment charge HE - - - (130) (130)
Amortisation charge B4 - - - (20) (20)
Closing net book amount BRI EE = = % . 2
At 31 December 2009 RZEINE
=
Cost R - - - 193 193
Accumulated amortisation and ZiEER
impairment e - - - (193) (193)
Net book amount RERE 4 2 i = %
Year ended HE-3-%F
31 December 2010 TZR=T-HILEE
Opening net book amount BOGETE - - - - -
Exchange differences ERES - 84 540 - 624
Additions R - - 3,375 - 3,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) WENBAR 237 360,000 185,017 10,158 = 555,175
Amortisation charge g - (5,199) - - (5,199)
Closing net book amount HEEETE 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553,975
At 31 December 2010 RZE-5%
=l
Cost A 360,000 185,101 14,073 193 559,367
Accumulated amortisation and 2iEER
impairment i - (5,199) - (193) (5392)
Net book amount IREFE 360,000 179,902 14,073 - 553,975
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of the mining right of approximately
HK$5,199,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 is
included in general and administrative expenses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocated the cost of mining right over its estimated
useful life of 30 years. The licence period of the mining
right held by the Group is 5 years. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group will be able to renew the mining
right with relevant government authorises continuously
at minimal charges.

Impairment tests for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment reviews, goodwill set out
above is allocated to the cash generating unit (CGU)
related to mineral resources operation.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecast derived from the
most recent financial budget approved by management
for the next five years. The CGU cashflow beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3%. The financial budget and growth rate are
estimated with reference to the development curve of the
industry in the PRC region. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows for CGU is 24.88%. In the opinion of
the directors, no material impairment loss is identified.

BILRE 2

HE—ZE-ZFE+=-H=+—HIE
B ERIBREEE S 475 155,199,000LE &
ER—RETHRERA -

PRAZHE ) SH IR B B AR IR LA ET A
RER0FERKRAD EAE - AEEE
BRZEBEERMARE - EERA/A
SEFEEARIEE R —EEHMBRARE
Z ERUERE

AEEERA

RTRERA - AEREZEEBENE
NEABEERFH RS ELBM

ReELBN 2B R EETRAEE
REEETE -AHEREEZETERR
REREERERRAEZITME - 15
RENEHES - EEERRKRE AT
pRheEcKBENRSELEUY
RERMBRZBATLL RAEFHTREK - R
RRENAHIERETE - EEREEX
AEBRBEEN RIFARTIHSRKZE
BMERE °

AREEREBEEEEM ERRAF 2 &
MY REERERESTEREE - HEXE
BRFHRrZESELESEURE S REL
DARARRER R RI%EITHS o B55
EEREERDERRMEZITEZ
BRMRE - BREBRSELSEN
ZHEERBITIALLE 524.88% - EFR
B BERHRENRERSE -
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

10 MHEBATKRER&EGER

AR e MRS AR MY RE

(a) MBLARRR

Company
N

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ST T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ARG - FRAAR 42,415 42,415
Capital contributions EE 7,234 -
49,649 42,415
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at R-E—ZFBF+_A=+—Hz=

31 December 2010: THBARAR :

Name

-1

Directly held:
BERA

Burwill and Company Limited

Burwill HK Portfolio Limited

Burwill China Portfolio Limited

Smart Task Limited

122 Annual Report 2010 F 3k

Place of
incorporation/
operations and

kind of legal entity

BRI EE
WEREERL

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBRAEERA

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RBRAEEAR
BEERAT

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

EERLBESAER
BEEDT

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

ABRAEBAER
BEEAR

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERTR
ERERE

HK$50,000,000
and £50,000

7 #50,000,0007T
550,000

Us$2
Ve

US$1
Eom

US$1
[V

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
FRERALZ
HE HRRHE
BEEAL

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

FERBRH

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

BRI

Investment holding

REZR
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10

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

10

Indirectly held:
MERE

Burwill Minerals Limited

EREFERAR

Burwill Resources Limited

BB EAERAA]

Burwill Resources Spain, S.A.

Burwill Steel Company Limited

Burwill Steel Pipes Limited
BERHERRAA

Burwill Times Industrial Limited

ERHERERARAT

Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai)
Limited (Note (i)

ERAR(L8)ERAR
(Hit)

Place of
incorporation/
operations and

kind of legal entity

BB, &
WR R AN

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBERAERA

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBRAELERA

Spain limited
liability company
ETEREERT

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

EBEAESER
BEAT

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEEREEAT
Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBERAEERR

Mainland China
3

AR e MRS AR Y RE

10 MEBLATRREREERZ)

() MEBLARRRE(E)

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERITR
EMRERE

HK$1

BT

HK$1,000,000
#51,000,0007T

EUR62,000
62,0008X 7T

US$13

13%8

HK$30,000,000

7% #30,000,0007T

HK$2
BRI

US$1,200,000
1,200,0003% 7T

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
FREHALZ
#E HRRE
BEFHLL

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

FERHRE

Investment holding

REER

Steel trading
HEE S

Steel trading
HEE 5

Investment holding

BEER

Steel processing

HEMNT

Investment holding

REEMR

Steel trading
HiEE 5
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

-1

Indirectly held: (continued)
fEEE - (8)

REmalRESERAA
(Hat()

Dongguan Hingwah Metals
Factory Limited (Note (i))

ReREReHERAH
(Hiz0)

Dor Uluslararasi Tasimacilik
Madencilik ve Dis Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi

Hing Wah Metals Factory Limited

HRERSGHBRAH

Hillot Limited

Tai Xin Minerals Limited
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Place of
incorporation/
operations and
kind of legal entity

BB, EE
W R AN

Mainland China
R

Mainland China
R

Republic of Turkey
THHEAME

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBRAERA

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEEREEAR
The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company
RERUEBER
BEEAR

AR e MRS AR MY RE

10 MEBLATRREREERZE)

(a) MEBLATRRE(E)

Issued and
fully paid capital

ERITR
EMRERE

RMB10,000,000
AEK#10,000,00070

HK$72,000,000
7% 1#72,000,0007T

TRY314,160
#EH314,160

HK$5,000,000
75%5,000,0007T

HK$500,000
7 #500,0007T

US$100
100%7T

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
FREHALZ
#E HRRE
BEFHLL

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

51%

Principal activities

FERBRE

Steel processing
|EMT

Steel processing

SEMT

Steel trading

Investment holding

REZR

Securities
investment

Investment holding

AR
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10 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Name

10

Indirectly held: (continued)
fEEE - (8)

BEREBREXERATF
()

KEREHEERAF
(i)

REFEREAERAT]
(L))

BNBEREXERAF]
(Het(i)

Yinmain Industrial Limited

EREXERAA

Place of
incorporation/
operations and

10 MELARREREERZ)

(a) MEBLATRRE(E)

Issued and

kind of legal entity fully paid capital

BB, &
WR R AN

Mainland China
R

Mainland China
I

Mainland China
FE

Mainland China
I

Hong Kong limited
liability company
BEBRALERAR

ERITR
EMRERE

HK$50,000,000
75 1#50,000,0007T

US$25,173,300
25,173,300% 7T

RMB37,793,500
AEK#37,793,5007T

RMB60,000,000
AR#60,000,0007T

HK$2
BT

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable

to the Group
FREHALZ
#E HRRE
BEFHLL

51%

51%

51%

69%

100%

Principal activities

FERHRE

Investment holding

REER

Mineral resources

BEER

Mineral resources

BEER

Commercial
property
BEEHE

Property holding
RENF
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10

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited, e &% &
AR A7), Dongguan Hingwah Metals Factory Limited,
SERBBERRAR, KEELBEEAR QA and KB
ZEREAR AT are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in Mainland China to be operated for 50
years up to March 2050, 20 years up to December 2028,
20 years up to July 2013, 30 years up to December 2037,
20 years up to September 2029 and 10 years up to
December 2017, respectively.

(i) BHEBREEHFRAR is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in Mainland China to be operated for
40 years up to April 2039.

The above list includes only those subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 December
2010.

Balances with subsidiaries

Except for the amount due from a subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$387,200,000
(2009: due from subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$131,000,000) which bear interest
at 5% (2009: 5%) per annum and are not repayable
within one year, all the outstanding balances with
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.
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10 MEBLATRREREERZE)

(a)

(b)

MEBLFRR(E)
it -

() BRAMKLS)ERAR - ExM
BIRESERAR RekZERS
BMARAR  SERESBEEERA
Al KBRS EGR AR RES
REWREAR AR BRF KL
ZHONEBELE  HEHHRA
A+EZ=-ZTRZEF=H - =+F
BT )N\E+ZR - Zt+FEZ=
e BN E e S =
F+=ZR  Z+FEZ=ZT-NEFN
ARt+EE—_T—+F+=H-

iy BNFEAEZEERA KRR EK
MZHINEBERE - BEHANT
EE—T=HFMA -

AEFEBRESARYAEH
BEBEUZHMBAT - EFR A
FIEEHMBRRZHE  BES
RIRENILE -

RBE-_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—H
IEFEREAERM - B ARER
EAMBREEER -

P B 2 B #SER

BB RARRRILN AR BE
387,200,0007c( ZFZ NF : Hi/E@
RN AR L) A7 131,000,0007T )
ZEBASE(ZETNF :5B) R
TER—FREZIN FTEETH
B ARG REEER - 25 E X

REFEHER -



W BEZRERLA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BEATRIRERS

(a) Investments in associates — Group

(a) BHELATRE-KME

Group
%M|
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Beginning of the year == )] 257,606 271,334
Share of results of associates FiRy NG
— profit/(loss) before — BB ATRF],
income tax (E1E) 8,850 (17,386)
— income tax expense — TSR i (1,197) (1,546)
Share of other comprehensive Fr st A &)
income of associates HEe2Em#lA = 3310
Dividends received B IR B (4,878) =
Share of other reserves of Fr Bt & A &)
associates He = 2,224
Distribution of shares in REE S N A
an associate f&1n (170,038) =
Exchange differences PEH =58 2,563 (330)
End of the year FR 92,906 257,606
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1

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

(continued)

(a)

Investments in associates — Group (continued)

The Group's interests in associates were as follows:

4= A B

775 R M R

[0 =

1 BEAFRERERE)

(a) BWELATRR-KE(E)

AEEER L AR AERINT

% of
Particulars Country of interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit held
BRfT EELC]
&% [12.3:3 ] BERBIER BE fiff KA 2 #&%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
#BRTT #BR%TT E%TT B%TRT
2010
Indirectly held:
RERA -
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 52,357 24,285 83,910 1,444 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, [slands
unlisted EERIHE
el =3 ONE
LM
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 211,618 148,790 502,284 5,758 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 i
Distribution Co. Ltd.  E#MEXR
FAEGN) A NI 19,997,570% 7T
BRAR
BNt R E T Paid up capital of Mainland China 4,241 2,235 6,506 451 30%
BRAA RMBS5,000,000 i
AK#5,000,0007
268,216 175,310 592,700 7,653
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11

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES

AR e MRS AR Y RE

1 BEAFRERGERE)

(continued)
(a) Investments in associates — Group (continued) (a) BEAFRE-SKE(Z)
The Group's interests in associates were as follows: AEBEBMERRANERNOT :
(continued) (%)
% of
Particulars Country of Profit/  interest
Name of issued capital incorporation Assets  Liabilities ~ Revenue (loss) held
BEf \ : Bl ##
A RAGEE BRDAVEIE BE BE WA (B8) %
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT A%Tr A%Trn B%Tn
2009
China LotSynergy Ordinary shares Bermuda 405,991 235,953 17,619  (16,997)  20.74%
Holdings Limited of HK$0.0025 each, ARE (Direct)
EVARERAT listed in Hong Kong (BE%)
Lak - gREE 0.09%
0.00257T (Indirect)
W& LW ()
Indirectly held:
RS
Nam Wah Precision Ordinary shares of The British Virgin 41,089 14,567 58,224 (5,604) 20%
Product (BVI) Limited US$0.1 each, Islands
unlisted KBRS
LAk 8RAET -
FLEm
Masteel (Yangzhou) Paid up capital of Mainland China 234,241 174,677 470,484 BB 29%
Processing & US$19,997,570 H
Distribution Co. Ltd. EHEXR
SHOEM) #E T 19,997,570% T
BRAH
BNt LB Paid up capital of Mainland China 3,467 1,985 4,568 532 30%
BRAR RMBS5,000,000 HE
AR5,000,0007T
684,788 427,182 550,895 (18,932)

On 27 January 2010, the Group distributed
1,540,023,984 shares in China LotSynergy Holdings
Limited to its shareholders. In this connection, the
Group recorded a net gain on distribution of shares
in an associate of approximately HK$501,897,000
which was recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2010

(see Note 33).

et St S ey = S e e =

A& H R 3% E

WA RAA

1,540,023,984% 2 %D F E A% R -
FEEAE 0 AEBSEDIREZE A
A I 15 75 & A1 4075 501,897,000
T ZBMEREE—_E—F
e i s el e
RAFER(RMIFE33) °

Annual Report 2010 3R 129



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & Bf 7 3y 3% MY =%

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 11 BHELTFRIREERZE)

(continued)
(b) Investment in an associate - Company (b) MEAFRE-AFH
Company
NF)
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
HBETT BT
Shares listed in Hong Kong — at cost IA&E _E AR — LKA - 10,766
Market value of listed shares EmiRHhmE - 522,010
(c) Balances with associates () BMELTHEER
The outstanding balances with associates are EAB S N R ARG EER - 2F A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on R EKEFE ©
demand.
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 BBz EMTHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RIPLEFHIK » RESHTEVIEAEE
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period T

are as follows:

Group %M
Financial
assets at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
Loans and profit or financial
receivables loss assets Total
BRATFEEB
REFRE At &
BERREKRR MERE MERE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRTT BARTRT AT
Financial assets as per REABERRER
consolidated balance sheet  HIBIFEE
2010 -5

Available-for-sale financial ~ BJ{tH &8 7%

assets BE - - 1,509 1,509

Financial assets at fair value #EAF(EZEBIER
through profit or loss IR B TS & B - 9,137 - 9,137
Other financial assets HE g EE - 349,707 - 349,707
Bills and accounts receivable FEUNZEE & FE Y IRIA 1,132,297 - - 1,132,297
Deposits and other receivables 24 & & & e Uk 68,271 = - 68,271
Due from associates B N AR 178 = = 178
Due from a related company BI:E A B/R K 1,751 - - 1,751
Cash and bank balances HE BRI 374,103 - - 374,103
1,576,600 358,844 1,509 1,936,953
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4= A

A mRNE

12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12 BRENBSZE&EMIA(Z)
Group %H

Financial liabilities at
amortised costs

R E AR
HMHBEAR
HK$'000
EBETT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated Z4FEEEEEBERHN
balance sheet HEaE
2010 —E—2F
Borrowings B 1,378,444
Due to related companies R E8E N B 3RIE 24,079
Bills and accounts payable JE < 48 K FE A~ iR I8 354,726
Other payables and accruals HyRMIRE R EE 177,530
1,934,779
Group %M
Financial
assets at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
Loans and profit or financial
receivables loss assets Total
BATEER
: BaFlRm AfHE
G E HBEE HKEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BT
Financial assets as per RITAEERER
consolidated balance sheet HEHKEE
2009 TN
Available-for-sale financial assets AJ it HH & B85 E - - 1,509 1,509
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBER
through profit or loss PR BT R B E < 12,610 - 12,610
Bills and accounts receivable EWZE K EIRIE 1,075,523 - - 1,075,523
Deposits and other receivables 1% M E BB 30,326 - = 30,326
Due from associates A YN=IlNE S 2,262 = - 2,262
Cash and bank balances BHe RIRTHE 293,639 - - 293,639
1,401,750 12,610 1,509 1,415,869
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12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12 BRENBSZEMIA(Z)
Group %H

Financial liabilities at
amortised costs

1R SR AR
BT 1
HK$'000
BT T
Financial liabilities as per consolidated Z4FEEEBEEBERM
balance sheet =N
2009 —ZETNEF
Borrowings B 959,156
Due to associates RE N B FRIE 24,079
Bills and accounts payable J?§1‘T7J<TF&B§E\1‘J‘¢EIE 359,049
Other payables and accruals He R IRE R EE A 42,499
1,384,783
13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 13 AHEMBEE
Group Company
£ 4%
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
R-B-BF RZTTNE RITTNE RZB-BF RITINE
e S e e o = =t F e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR AR ARTT ERTR ABTT

Club debentures 2fES 1,509 1,509 1,509 90 90
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14 INVENTORIES 14 8

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-E—2F R_ZTTNF R_ZEZTNF
ar=ESEar=lE r = BET—E — 8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T
Raw materials R4 %L 99,593 67,994 85,333
Work-in-progress ERS 1,437 1,819 2712
Finished goods 2UR% 193,504 48,994 73,284
Consumables JHAEm 936 1,088 1,245
295,470 119,895 162,574
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and FEKARHERRE R AHEKAR
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately B & B8 5T #9785 5,663,613,0007T ( —

HK$5,663,613,000 (2009: HK$2,992,073,000). TTAF : H#2,992,073,0007T) °

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 15 BRAFEBBESIRNMHESE

OR LOSS
Group Company
£E 27

At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
RIP-%BF R-ZTNF RIZTAFE RIP-BF R_ZTNF
e e = D g <D U

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ARTR ARTT ARTTL ARTR AETT

Financial assets at fair value BATERBERTIRN

through profit or loss: MBAE:
- Listed equity securities - EmRAES
- Hong Kong -&i 5,413 9,098 36,920 649 1
- Overseas -7 3,724 3,512 3,275 - -
Market value of listed securities ~ Fiiis&% 2 mfE 9,137 12,610 40,195 649 1
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value AT EEBERFIIENTBREEND
through profit or loss are recorded in other gains, net in FEES  EaSERERNETKRRFE
the consolidated income statement (see Note 26). B IR (B HiEE26)
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their AR AEZEENEEIREEEERT
current bid prices in an active market. HBZREREE -
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AR e MRS AR Y RE

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 RHTHESE
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-B—ZTF R_ZTNF RZZZNF
r=Ea =) == E —F=E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EB¥ETT BT BT
Contingent consideration in U BB BT BB A R EE A Y
relation to the acquisition of HARRE
subsidiaries (Note 37) (H1:£37) 349,707 = =

17 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BUgEE - BIgiRIERETREIE®

Group Company
&8 NG
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
RZ2-2% NZZTHNE RIZTHhE RIT-BF RNZZTNE
R B Hi e N e T B =t Hessied e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB #ETT BB
Bills and accounts receivable EWEE R EKIEE 1,134,886 1,078,018 977,338 - =
Less: provision for impairment of  J§, : EEMFRI(E
receivables B (2,589) (2,495) (3,432) = 2
Bills and accounts receivable - net  JEWIZ 18 & fEURIRIE — 34
(Note (a)) (Hit(a) 1,132,297 1,075,523 973,906 = =
Loan to a director (Note 39) BEEEH(Mi39) 391 586 733 - -
Deposit paid for acquisition WEEH B A el
of subsidiaries K% - 78,000 = = =
Deposits, prepayments & BHFR
and other receivables HEPEKRT 423,299 465,057 127,667 678 484
423,690 543,643 128,400 678 434
Less: non-current portion W FEREEH G
Loan to a director and EZEAR
prepayments SR (83,890) (156,342) (537) = =
Current portion e 339,800 387,301 127,863 678 484
1,472,097 1,462,824 1,101,769 678 434
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17 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods
for sales of goods ranging from 30 days to 120 days.
Consideration in respect of sold properties is payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties are payable
by the tenants on a monthly basis.

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts receivable is as follows:

AR e MRS AR MY RE

17 BIRE - BRI E R T ER®R

(#&)

(a)

AEEERRHEERAGRTERFP=1H
E-B_THZERY - EREMNEEY
EWEEBEDRBHEA QT HEHRN - A
Yz AW ARBFZEAXN -

FEU S i e EUR IR TR BR AT A0 T

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-B2—2F RZZETNE RZZETZNF
E=H=CE==H TEETrEE —JE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T BT T
Within three months =@AR 1,118,883 1,070,963 950,473
Over three months but within B =8 A m B
six months ~NEA 12,830 3,950 23,048
Over six months but within BN E A A EBA
twelve months +={@R8 = 7 A5
Over twelve months e +=—@A 3,173 3,098 2,666
1,134,886 1,078,018 977,338
Less: provision for impairment of & : FEUER
receivables BB R (2,589) (2,495) (3,432)
1,132,297 1,075,523 973,906

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect
to bills and accounts receivable as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed.
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AR e MRS AR Y RE

17 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BRRE BREREREETERR
(continued) (&)
Notes: (continued) Kist - (48)
(b)  Accounts receivable that are less than three months past due (b) EELR=EAMNELIREBRE RS

are generally not considered impaired. As of 31 December
2010, the following accounts receivable were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

BEERE RZBE—ZF+_A=+—
H - A TREIRERE BB ERE -
RIS R % B850 B 5 R B R 8%
BB R o Ih S5 IR IE A IRER 7517 40
I8 &

Group
@

At At

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

R_E—EF RZZETNF

==l F A =ar i

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Within three months =EAR 111,020 100,784
Over three months but within WBR=(EAmTEA

six months A A 12,830 3,621
Over six months but within AN EA A

twelve months +—{@A - 7

Over twelve months BeE+—fEA 584 603

124,434 105,015

As of 31 December 2010, the accounts receivable of approximately
HK$2,589,000 (2009: HK$2,495,000) were impaired and provided
for. The amount of the provision was approximately HK$2,589,000
(2009: HK$2,495,000) as of 31 December 2010. The individually
impaired accounts receivable mainly relate to customers, which are
in unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of these
accounts receivable is as follows:

(@]

JFE U R TE 49 75 %5 2,589,000 T ( Z B E A,
4 #2495 0000 R E—TFE+—
SRR BT D = e e ]
=+—0  REREDRE2,589,0007T
(ZZZ N4 : #182,495,0007T)  ERIR
B FEUR IR B = B3 B BRI TE R LASME
ARF RS o L ERKIRBRRERIT

Group
&=

At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
R-S—2% RZZETNEF
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-8
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Over twelve months H:E+=—@A 2,589 2,495
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17 BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

AR e MRS AR MY RE

17 BIRE - BRI E R T ER®R
(&)

Hret - (&)

(d) AERE R RS N R IR TR A IR £ 58
AT B

Group
£H

At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
R_E—ZF RZZTTNEF
Tr=EEar—lE P ==l
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
us$ =TT 998,825 978,469
RMB AR 58,993 32,817
HK$ BT 15,555 27858
EUR BT 58,924 36,904
1,132,297 1,075,523

(e) Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

) ERIRBEREREESNT

©

Group
&=

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

At 1 January R—A—H 2,495 3,432

Provision for accounts receivable FEWUIR IR B

impairment B 94 1,210
Accounts receivable written off TG R A S BB WL T i 8

during the year as uncollectible A e YR IR TH - (2,147)

At 31 December el et e =] 2,589 2495

The creation and release of provision for impaired accounts
receivable have been included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off,
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within bills and accounts receivable do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting
period is the carrying amounts of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.
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18

19

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The outstanding balances represent amounts due from/
to subsidiaries of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited,
a company in which Mr. Chan Shing and Ms. Lau Ting,
the directors of the Company have beneficial interests.
The outstanding balances with related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The maximum outstanding balance due from a
related company during the year was approximately
HK$1,751,000 (2009: Nil).

iR e B RS R I R

18

RMELATRR,REAEAFRER

ERABHEBRI NEVERER AR
ETHWB AR ZHIE  MARRESRK
oA R BE L TR %A Rl A E AR
= o JEUR HRRE A RFIA B EIEE -
R BENERENREE - FRNBEEAFAR
EEmmeiBLB%1,751,000L( ==
TNE  ]) o

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 19 BE&RBITEES
Group Company
%@ AT
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
R-B-2F HRITTNE RITINE RIB-BF HITINE
i) el - e el T e e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BB BETT ERTT BETL
Cash at banks and in hand RIREFRE 189,123 254,812 167,241 627 15,763
Short-term bank deposits RHEIER 184,980 38,827 194,608 = 2
374,103 293,639 361,849 627 15,763

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 3.43% (2009: 1.38%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 17 days (2009: 185 days).

At 31 December 2010, the Group had bank deposits of
approximately HK$2,335,000 (2009: Nil) pledged with
the banks (see Note 38(d)).

At 31 December 2010, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$32,771,000 (2009: HK$52,635,000)
are denominated in RMB and placed with banks in
Mainland China. The remittance of these funds out
of Mainland China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the Chinese Government.
Also, the exchange rate is determined by the Chinese
Government.

RESRITERNERAR A3 43E(=F
TNE  1.388)  ZEEFEROFHEH
BARI7TR(ZEZTNEF : 185K) ©

R-E—ZFE+_A=+—H £8H
RITHERA)B%2,335,000(=ZFETh
F )R FIRIT (R HEE38)) °

R-E—ZTF+-_A=+—H BHE£K
IR1T4ERR%)B#32,771,000L(—ZF A,
£ : B¥52 635,00070) RAA R AE
B BB A AT A AR B 2 SRAT o fe R e
HZEELeXRRFRBMEREZIN
EEHRE - R - EXHPEBRNGE

;'_Eo
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20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 B&&E
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
EEREE m{E
(thousands) HK$'000
(5FEr) BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—A—H 3,112,280 311,228
Issue of shares (Note (b)) BATRAD (BTa£(b)) 310,000 31,000
At 31 December 2009 and RZEZNF+=—A=+—8H
1 January 2010 kE—ZF2—=FF—H—H 3,422,280 342,228
Issue of shares (Note (c)) BITIRG (K17t () 307,380 30,738
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BT (B3 (d)) 685,700 68,570
At 31 December 2010 e P = e e =] 4,415,360 441,536
Notes: Kiaz -
(@)  Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by shareholders at @ MRZTE—ZF_AT+_BHRIFIASE

(0

the special general meeting held on 12 February 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased to
6,800 million shares with a nominal value of HK$0.1 per share.
All issued shares are fully paid.

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 21 October 2009,
the Company allotted and issued a total of 310,000,000 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35 each. Total net
proceeds from the placing of approximately HK$106.5 million
were intended to be used as the Group’s general working
capital.

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 11 March 2010,
the Company allotted and issued a total of 307,380,000 new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.605 each. Total net
proceeds from the placing of approximately HK$182.9 million
were intended to be used as the Group’s general working
capital.

On 31 March 2010, 685,700,000 ordinary shares were issued as
partial consideration at the fair value of HK$0.7 each for the
acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals Limited (Note 37(a)).
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(b) BRER-_ZFZAE+A=T—HILZ
REWHZE  AREASKREERNHEE
0.35 T RIB B RABCA BT RACE A
310,000,000 B ¥ £ B2 & P 1S R0
A HAEE1.0658TH BIEAREE —&K
LEES -

(0 WER=-T-—ZTF=A+—RHiIuzEE&
Wik - AR A AEREER{DE%0.605
THREBERARAZRITRERAH
307,380,000 % #T AX {5 ° BE & AT 15 5K IEF

e HABEE1 829 T AIEASE —%
EEES o
d R-Z—ZTF=ZA=+-—B:  RAFESE

fi% % #50.7 70 3£ 77685,700,000 A% X 8 A% 1
AU EETai Xin Minerals Limited Z Z3A X &
(F5E37(@a)) °
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 20 B&&E(#E)

Share options

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
6 June 2002, shareholders of the Company approved
the termination of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 23 July 1999 and the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”). Under
the New Scheme, the Company may grant options to
employees (including executive directors) of the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding for this purpose
shares issued on exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the directors, and will not be
less than the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the trading day of granting the options and
the average of the closing prices of the shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of granting the options.

Movements in number of share options outstanding and

MRk

ARBR_EZ_FNANBERITZE
REFARS FESREIERIEATR
—NANFEEA -+ =BERB 2B
eI R AT 8 ([ #hETEl]) -
BEFTE - ARARARTEEZET
(BREPITES) BRENRBEARAQRZ
& BERRRZERARGE T
BEAR 2 30% (T A BT i AR #E 1 889 T
R D) - BRZARBEBRESATE @ I
B LRIROEE - EEBERES B
FRBS: 22 P B R 2 Wi (B Je 2 3% 1 P i e
BT AE R 5 B R B 22 P B 3R 2 S35 Uk
ME=Z&ZZ2&EHE -

RARITE 2 AR B M AR 0tE

their related weighted average exercise prices are as EHTEEEHH M
follows:
2010 2009
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HK$ Options HK$ Options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)
EYTER MEiE THTEE AR
(ShRET) (Fat) (BRBT) (Fzr)
At 1 January T\t b ] - = = =
Granted BiRH 0.50 94,000 = -
Forfeited B84 0.50 (2,400) - =
At 31 December N =B == 0.50 91,600 - -

Out of the 91,600,000 outstanding options (2009: Nil),
32,060,000 options were exercisable (2009: Nil). No
share option was exercised or expired during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

191,600,000 ZFZNF : ) KT
2 BB HEF - 32,060,000 —FF h
FEIBREAR TIIE BE_T—
TE+-A=1+—HIFE  HEERK
T TR EA -
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 20 B&&E(#E)

RRBR i (2)

Share options (continued)

RERBRITERZBREZFHA KT

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have

the following expiry date and exercise price: HEEWT -
Exercise
price in HK$ Options
per share (thousands)
TR MERRiE
Expiry date S]] €125 (F&t)
2010 2009

5 October 2013 “ZT—=%+HAH 0.50 91,600 =

BRE:FBHHEHE AEETES

The vesting period of the options is from the date of

grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

The fair value of the options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2010 was estimated as at the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes options pricing model
with the following assumptions:

(i) Risk-free interest rate — the yield of three years
Exchange Fund Notes;

(i) Expected volatility of share price — annualised
standard deviations of continuously compounded
rates of return on the Company. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome;

(iii) Expected life of share options — one to three years;
(iv) Expected dividend yield — nil; and

(v) No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

According to Black-Scholes options pricing model, the
fair value of the options granted during the year ended
31 December 2010 was approximately HK$15,480,000
of which the Group recognised a share option expenses
of approximately HK$9,548,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010.
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(i) BEEZEAFH-——E=%F:
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 20 Bg&x(#E)
Share options (continued) MERgE (2)
At 31 December 2010, the Company had 91,600,000 === B = =8| 7 a8\ F]
options outstanding under the New Scheme. The exercise BT - MARTTEZEBEES
in full of the remaining options would, under the 91,600,00017 ° FEARN R AIIRITIRAEE
present capital structure of the Company, result in the T 2\EITESR T BRE G ERREINE
issuance of 91,600,000 additional ordinary shares of the 7791,600,000% A~ ) & @A + W {F A
Company and additional share capital of approximately K& & B 5 I AN 4975 %9,160,0007T
HK$9,160,000 and share premium of approximately K 497 5 36,640,000 7T (K HOBR 31T 52
HK$36,640,000 (before issue expenses). ) &
21 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS 21 HERBEREZRT
Group
L]
Capital
Share Capital  redemption  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve  adjustments profits Total
EXEE
RinaE BAGRE Gl HERE N a5

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTL BT ARTR R%Tn  A%TR RETn

At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-PA—-H 662,539 22,959 12,037 64,396 291,369 1,053,300
Loss for the year EEER = - - = (4,646) (4,646)
Share of other comprehensive Nt NG oA
income/(loss) of associates 2EMA/(BR) - 3310 - (330) = 2,980
Currency translation differences  SHER £5 = = = (881) - (881)
Issue of shares Bk 77,500 - - - - 77,500
Share issue expenses eSS (1,757) = = = - (1,757)
Share of other reserves of associates Fi{hi< AR B E A - 2,224 - - - 2,224
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
R 738,282 28,493 12,037 63,185 286,723 1,128,720
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21 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 21 BRTREBREZRFH (&)

Group
&0
Capital Share-based
Share Capital ~ Contributed  redemption  Revaluation  Translation compensation ~ Retained
premium reserve surplus Teserve reserve  adjustments reserve profits Total
LA Wi

BAER  WAER  EARR B OEGRR  WERE  CARER  RERW L
HSO00 RSO0 KRS0 HKSOO0 HKSO00 HKSOO0 HKSOO0  HKSODD  HKSOD

TR RRTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERER ERER ERER

At1 January 2010 A-5-35-5- 138,28 8493 - 12,031 - 63,185 - 86,13 1128720
Proft for he year ERRA - - - - - - - 549,444 549,444
Suplos on eeluation of property ~ EEGER - - - - 14989 - - - 14949
Deferred income tax aising from NEERLET

revluaton of property e - - - - (3,736) - - - (3,739)
Relezse ofresrves to ncome SIRERTRD

statement for distrbution of il G

shares in an associte BAR - 31 - - - (6:384) - - (9511)
Share ofother comprehensie i

Income of associates 2EHA - - - - - 2563 - - 2563
Curency transation differences ShEiZE - - - - - 20,79 - - 207%
lsue of ses Aiikh 566,647 - - - - - - - 566,647
Share e expenses RiER 3112 - g - E - = - (311
Reduction of share premium ARk EE (138,26) - 738,282 - : 5 4 3 2
Eployees share option scheme [EEERER

—Value of employee senices —EERARE - - - - - - 9,548 - 9,548
Distrbution of shares n an assodate. ~~ HEEERATRA - - (610) - - : = - (690)
Effecton ditibution i spece EhntzE - (25,366) - - - - - - (5360)
Changesinownershipinterestsn BB AEHEAT

subsdiariesthat do not result n 5l

aloss of ontrol ERsd - - - - - - - 5 5
At 31 December 2010 NoE-BE

Ef=at 563,535 - 9,11 12,031 1213 80,162 9548 836,225 1,611,892
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21 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 21 HRTHREBREZSRH (&)

Company
|
Capital Share-based
Share  redemption  Contributed compensation  Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
EFOM MR
kAR 1] BARR  CHRRE  REERN A48

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
AR A%Tm AW ARt BNTT  ARTn

1 January 2009 R=2EnF-A-H 662,539 12,037 128,832 - 12,877 816,285
Loss for the year EEER z = = - (8,078) (8,078)
Issue of shares B 77,500 = - B = 77,500
Share issue expenses RHEGLH (1,757) = - = - (1,757)
At 31 December 2009 RZIZTNF

== 738,282 12,037 128,832 - 4,799 883,950
At 1 January 2010 R-£-%£-f-H 738,282 12,037 128,832 - 4,799 883,950
Profit for the year EEEAN - - - - 627,198 627,198
Issue of shares BIIRA 566,647 - - - - 566,647
Share issue expenses RiA BT H (3112) = = = = (3,112)
Reduction of share premium BRI Bk (738,282) - 738,282 - - -
Employees share option scheme:  [E S Bk ETE -

- value of employee services 1E h%EE = - - 9,548 - 9,548
Distribution of shares in an associate 7KE % 2 7R () - - (639,110) - - (639,110)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-B&

s 563,535 12,037 228,004 9,548 631,997 1,445,121
Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between @A%ﬁ%ﬁ(i)%fﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁZEﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ)\W
the nominal amount of the shares issued and the BARZFEERTMEZ5 0 &i)H
book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries Hﬂ;mﬁ PREE A o BIA R BRA] I ITAL
acquired; and (ii) transfer from share premium account. It RE ek B B AR (D S EE ANE Rl -

can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares or for capital
redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed BEABRE—NLN\—FREE AR
surplus is distributable to shareholders subject to the BADEGRE - BHORDIRE - 2
condition that a company shall not declare or pay a AR BE(EE D HAERS (i) K B E 2 Al &
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed HEEIREARE  BETERARKG
surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable EBIRZ B ANRFITEEE Mkt
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the f% B D RN BER o

realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves (excluding retained profits) Qe s e s s Bl Tt\ﬁj\
as at 31 December 2010 available for distribution to IKERR 2 AR BFEE (T RIERE
shareholders were represented by the contributed ﬂ)ﬁ%ﬁk@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%zz&oo&oooﬁ:
surplus of approximately HK$228,004,000 (2009: ZTENF ¢ HB%128,832,0007T) °

HK$128,832,000).
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21 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS (continued) 21 BRTREBREZRFH (&)

Pursuant to the special general meeting of the Company
held on 21 January 2010, the special resolutions
approving (i) the reduction of the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company of approximately HK$738,282,000 to
nil and the credit arising from the reduction of share
premium was transferred to the contributed surplus
of the Company, was duly passed by the shareholders

BE-—_ZT—ZF—A_-_+—HAKEEF
BIAE - FRRZRAENERE A
AR REIIREMEIRS BN EBE
738,282,000 THIRET - WiGEE 2 #E
IREFEFARRRBARGIR - BER
RIEXBBEEHBBRNDEER-Z—F
F—A=+—BHERER Ri)pgAR
AIERMABIEL 2(85] © SETARE

and the reduction of share premium took effect on 21
January 2010 accordingly; and (ii) the amendments to
the Bye-laws of the Company which would allow either
the shareholders or the board of directors to approve
distributions to shareholders out of the contributed
surplus of the Company to be satisfied by distribution
of specific assets and allow the board of directors to
approve any interim dividend payment.

ARBERIEEZRILEEARRAHA
BMBRIREHBFEEY DK TR EARF
EERERNFERSE -

22 BORROWINGS 22 B
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R_E—ZF RZZETNF RZZZThF
cheSH = HE el e = JEl=1g]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BT
(restated) (restated)
(/=&=7)) (/==5)
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings RITER 319,100 291,228 -
Other loans from non-controlling P& A Bl FEHEARAR 3R B
shareholders of subsidiaries EvER 59,739 4,438 4,438
Finance lease liabilities BEMERE 557 1,054 2,518
379,396 296,720 6,956
Current e
Bank overdraft (Note 34(b)) SRITES (H1a34(b)) 955 = =
Bank borrowings RITER 997,012 660,991 579,025
Other loans under margin facilites FREE THETEXR - = 9,790
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 1,081 1,445 1,501
999,048 662,436 590,316
Total borrowings BE 1,378,444 959,156 597,272
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 HE®(E)
Secured borrowings are as follows: HEBEZRINT :
At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
BWoZE—ZF RZEZTNF
TrElEEap=lE TT=RET—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Bank borrowings IRITERK 445,701 283,818
Finance lease liabilities MEHREARE 1,638 2,499
447,339 286,317

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$445,701,000
(2009: HK$283,818,000) were secured by certain
leasehold land, land use rights, buildings and investment
properties (see Notes 6, 7 and 8). Finance lease liabilities
are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
not repayable within one year.

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 3.1(c). As at 31 December 2009 and
2010, none of the covenants relating to the drawn down
facilities had been breached.

IR1ITE A B 445,701,000 ( —EZ
FLEE ¢ ##283,818,00070 ) LAZE AT E
Tih - TR BFERIEEYEE
WA (EKIsEe - 7k8) - mEMEARE
ERLEEWHET  AAEENKEESR
EmNE=KEBHAEA -

B8 R B SRR AR R ) H B B R K
- 2RERTNER—FAEE -

AEBEIHDBITEEAXBITEALE
ETEEARBLEREMNRZLATRR -
RERNBARESMEBERNEER
ZH - BEASEEERZY - AIERE
NEFHERERFEE - AEESTE
HEERZELHNETIBN - AREE
BReEeRBRNE— P BRRKE
310 c RZZEENR-_ZE—ZTF+_A
=t+—H AEETEEREBERR
EEMRY -
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 BR#E)
The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows: EEEHWRNEBENT
Bank borrowings and overdrafts Other loans
BRITRRRER HERR
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
RZIB-B% HR-ZTTNF RZTTNF RIE-BFE H-TTNF
TGS rEETE o e e F = H i s e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTIT BETT BBTT ERTT BB
(restated) (restated)

(#8%5) (%31)

Within one year —ER 997,967 660,991 579,025 < =

Between one and two years = ER 157,235 108,373 = - -

Between two and five years —ZRFR 161,865 182,855 - 59,739 4,438
1,317,067 952,219 579,025 59,739 4,438

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their EFRIREESEE A FEME o

fair values.
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 BEH(E)
At At
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
R-Z—25 RZZETNF
Tr=l; S T=A="1—g
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ST IT
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEAE
— minimum lease payments: —&EREMK :
Not later than one year THBA—F 1,120 521
Later than one year and THBiE—F1B
not later than five years B F F 622 1,100
1,742 2,621
Future finance charges on finance EVEME Z R KB 75
leases == (104) ({122)
Present value of finance lease MEHESAE
liabilities ZIRE 1,638 2,499
The present value of finance lease FABEAEBZEHE
liabilities is as follows: AR
Not later than one year THBE—F 1,081 1,445
Later than one year and HaiE—FE
not later than five years BB A F 557 1,054
1,638 2,499
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 E®R(E)
The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting RifE HHIRM B TR T ¢

period as follows:

2010 2009
EUR Uss  RMB HKS  Other us$ RMB HK$
Rt Rt ARW  #ER% RE XL AR¥ AT

Bank borrowings RITER 45% 34% 57%  15% - 35%  56% 25%
Finance lease liabilities ~ REHEEE - - - 2.1% 5.1% - - 2.0%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are SEEXRNRMSTEATIIERE RN

denominated in the following currencies:

At At
31 December 31 December

2010 2009

R-E—Z% R-ZTNF

= H= TR =T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRTT BT T

Us$ =S 1,023,629 592,187
RMB AR 167,017 207,958
HK$ BT 145,457 159,011
EUR BT 41,746 =
Other He 595 =
1,378,444 959,156
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 BERAR
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account EIEFTERIIRE 2 S8 @smmn T
is as follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At 1 January T et =} (78,496) (71,068)
Exchange differences ME W =5 (4,350) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT /B 1 &)

(Note 37) (K17237) (41,453) =
Income statement charged EEEF IR (15,829) (7,428)
Tax charge relating to components of HEETCEEBAKD

other comprehensive income B4 K F 18 (5,415) —
At 31 December SR e el = (145,543) (78,496)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss PG A E Ty E R RS A M am a]
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related FHRARRERT &N F IR Mt prases 2
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. MBIERER - "EEBRERTIBAS
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately #341,834,000 T (ZEZ N5 : B
HK$341,834,000 (2009: HK$356,996,000), which certain 356,996,0007T) * HP HHFFEEHR
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong BRAE - FEEEAMEETEN -
Inland Revenue Department. These carry forwards began ZNERBRER  MEBNRBERE
to expire in 2008 for Mainland China and can be carried HARR o 018 A A5 88 DA 85 R SR I AR B UK
forward indefinitely for Hong Kong. Tax losses can be NG

carried forward to offset future taxable income.
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 REFRER(ZE)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities ERREREEAERBE 2SS (HERFE—
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation BFi R 2 SR I

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Accelerated tax Investment
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total
BERBRAR mERAHE REnz £t an

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR  ERTT ERTR ARTR EWFR ANt EWFTR ARTx

At 1 January R-A—-H (609) (631) (92,610) (83,620) (8,946) (7,149)  (102,165) (91,400)
Credited/(Charged) to the income  EB#ZiElk/

statement (%) 253 22 (15,954) (8,990) (1,238) (1,797) (16,939) (10,765)
Charged to other EEE2ERAR

comprehensive income nk - - - - (5,415) - (5,415) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - (45.362) - (45362) <
Exchange differences EizE 26 - (4,167) - (407) - (4,548) -
At 31 December RtZA=1-H (330) (609)  (112,731) (92,610) (61,368) (8,946)  (174,429)  (102,165)

Decelerated tax

Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Others Total
REFHREE BERERE k| it &R

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTR  BRTT BWTR ARTR EWTR AN MR ARTx

At 1 January R-A-H 1,247 1,170 22,317 19,057 105 105 23,669 20,332
(Charged)/Credited to the income %%

statement (108) /85 (3) 7 1113 3,260 : < 1110 3337
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR - - 3,909 - - = 3,909 <
Exchange differences EAZR - - 194 - 4 2 198 -
At 31 December RTZR=1-H 1,244 1,247 21,533 2,317 109 105 28,886 23,669
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

23 REEFRGIR(E)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet as
assets/liabilities not realisable/due within one year:

BEAEEMNABEARAEERRE
BB AEEE - MELEAFHY KRR —
PADHERE - RIR] AR AL PR 1S R B B SR
ST AEEREN - Bt AEE KR
HE > TIERESREEERBRAMN
TAR—FRER BRHzEE&FE
SR

At At At

31 December 31 December 1 January

2010 2009 2009

R_E—BF RZZEZNF RZZZTNF

el H =t F s e = = =g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT T

Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSIHEE 22,837 23,136 20,054
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEF & E (168,380) (101,632) (91,122)
(145,543) (78,496) (71,068)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprise
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5-10%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2010, no deferred income tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
and associates will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates in Mainland China for which deferred
income tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$6,246,000 at 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$6,512,000).

REBFHPECEMAETE  RAERM
BRI ZIBERECERIEREES
&2 R BZABWI10% AN » LR E
R-FFN\F - HERWERAR—
EELFT_H=T—HUEBZET -
fief o B P 3 ERL SN BRI R R 3 P B RDE R [
RIS GRA) - RIBE Z FRINTL K AT B8
CHEM  RAKEME  BRARER
5-10% ° Hiit » AEEARERNFTEA
DAV R A UNCIVEL NG F %N
—EENF-A-HRELZBNMK
2 B S BRTEIT

R-ZE—ZFFE+—A=+—H ' HEHR
ANEB R B RS 2 B A 7 & B
&N A R AR BE B A i A 2 TR B RE
REMBLEFET - EERE - WEN
B AR KB E QRN AR BER A &R
RAORZERF] o WRERBELEFTSH
BEZ B AHHE A E R E AR
BWHZEECEREZEER_T—ZF
+=A=+—H&HX45%%6,246,000
T(ZEZTNF : #55%6,512,000
JT) °

Annual Report 2010 3R 153



W Burwill Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

R e IS AR MY RE

24 BEREREMIRER

Ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as FENER R EMRERB ST
follows:
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R_Z—ZF RZZENF RZZENF
e = e H S e S T ] — k=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT
Within three months =@AR 349,974 359,049 334,400
Over three months but within BB=1EAm T BaE
six months N E A 4,694 = =
Over six months but within B~ A A AR R
twelve months +={&A - - 1,497
Over twelve months BiE+ 1A 58 - -
354,726 359,049 335,897

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

BATIEEREL

AEENENRBEMEMNRENRDS

At At At

31 December 31 December 1 January

2010 2009 2009

A_E—ZF RZZETNF R-TThEF

sl H =t HEE e S e ] =5 =g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETRT BT T BT T

us$ = 257,470 315,567 291,418
RMB ARE 27,948 3,175 22,969
HK$ BIT 9,758 4,922 623
EUR BT 59,550 35,385 20,887
354,726 359,049 335,897
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25 PROVISION FOR LAND RESTORATION AND

26

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

R e IS AR MY RE

25 MR R IR AR A 0

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

BYTT BETT

At 1 January == - =

Exchange differences e ZE5 93 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lk B Ff /BB 2 B

(Note 37) (B15t37) 1,674 -

Income statement charged fE Bz =Bk 1,176 =

At 31 December TR et et =] 2,943 -

The provision for land restoration and environmental
costs is in relation to the estimated costs of complying
with the Group’s obligations for land reclamation. These
costs are expected to be incurred on mine closure, which,

based on current mineral reserve estimates.

OTHER GAINS, NET

THERMREKNABEBEREINAEE
HERNEEEBRAZ G5 o LHIAK
ADRIFREBEERH @A - LA

TR AR EL

26 HEWRBH

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTT BT
Fair value gains on BATEERIER
financial assets at fair value TR IS EEZ
through profit or loss A EKE 1,039 117,202
Interest income: AMBUTA -
— on bank deposits —RITER 575 2,248
— on other receivables —He Rl 229 261
Dividend income AR SN 12 106
Fair value gains on other HEHBEEDN
financial assets ARG 34,840 -
Fair value gains on investment KEYHER
properties N ERES 62,866 39,085
(Losses)/Gains on disposal of HEMSE  HENKREZ
property, plant and equipment (E18), %R (2,014) 675
Gains on disposal of land use rights & 1 i {5 B # 2 & F 4,787 =
Others HE 8,408 24,866
110,742 84,443
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27 EXPENSES BY NATURE 27 EBEESEHNER

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution GITESHERAN « HERSEBRAMN—K%
expenses and general and administrative expenses are R EBEBRAMNEBEROHIOT
analysed as follows:

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Depreciation of property, LIE 155

plant and equipment RBTE

— owned assets —BEBE 11,203

- assets held under finance leases -MEHEEE 926
Amortisation of prepaid operating B EHRE

lease payments IR 8 404
Amortisation of intangible assets B B O 20
Operating lease rentals 2EREHS SIAISE
Employee benefit expense EERAFX

(including directors’ emoluments) (BREESHS)

(Note 28) (K1i228) 71,213
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 130
Write-down of inventories to RIEFER

net realisable value A2 FE

(included in cost of sales) (BIERIEERA) =
Provision for impairment of accounts  fEWIRTERIE

receivable R 94 1,210
Net exchange gains BE 5% e (838) (5,367)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE & 930 880

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 28 ERIEFIFAX
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Wages and salaries HETE 75,821 63,696
Share options granted to directors R TFEZENEEH

and employees B 9,548 i
Pension costs — defined RN — RE R REE

contribution plans (Note (a)) (Kti£(a)) 4,279 4,114
Staff welfare 8 T187| 3,097 3,403

92,745 71728
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Original Scheme”), which is managed by independently
administered funds. The Group’s monthly contributions are
based on 5% of employees’ monthly salaries. The employees
are entitled to receive 100% of the Group's contribution and
the accrued interest thereon upon retirement or leaving the
Group after completing ten years of service or at a reduced
scale of 30% to 90% after completing three to nine years of
services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December
2000, the Group has arranged for these employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’'s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
to retirement plans at rates of approximately 9% to 33% of
the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, and has
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group's
contributions to the aforementioned schemes was
approximately HK$4,279,000 (2009: HK$4,114,000) without
deduction of forfeited contributions of the Original Scheme.

R e IS AR MY RE

28 EREFMAzZE)

(a)

Bhe - REHRR

AEEREBREELHSHEBAREIESE
B2 REBRFRANEI([REHE]]) - &%
ESAZHFIREE AFHNS%HE - B
RN TEROM T FE RIS EREFASE « B
B AR 2 E BN HR R EF
B BRm =2 NFRE A E30% 2
90% LI UER ©

AEEA_ZTTTF+ _A—HERARSE
BlEE T2 ERHEAES (8
28] —ERBURFTAEERNE
HHKETE - RIBEBESFE - AFER
Hig 8% 5 ARRRHIE QTR GEIRHR
T BAREEFSMS%HEHR - EER
BENSERFAESREEERESAEE
1,000 7T °

REHBEEPIRE - AEEAETEES
SEEREBERKGE - AEEIRER
BEARF A% E33% MR o BREE
O AREBAFEECERRAESN
RIGRARBRNEE - BREBHRIK
AEARRNRNEENEHNEEZERE -

RER « AEBEYE EsrEER A ERE
A 7B%54,279,0007 (Z 2T NF « B
4,114,0007T) + S0 EEFHIER R AT 81 H9 )2 U fit

&
oo
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 28 EERFIRAXZE)
Notes: (continued) B - ()
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments () EERERTHBHH
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BE—T—T&+—_A=+—HItEE -
December 2010 is set out below: SEREEMEMOT
Salaries, Employer's
allowances contribution Employee
and Discretionary to pension  share option
Name of director Fees benefits bonuses scheme benefits Total
Fid o 2R B EHEIE &R
EFgta g Rl 313 EEME  WREERN ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTT BRTR BRTR

Executive directors HTES

Mr. CHAN Shing B o 4 - 4,781 952 21 459 6,419
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EERAE - 2,360 375 110 459 3,304
Mr. YANG Dawei BABEE - 583 - - 188 m
Ms. LAU Ting Blig it - 4,189 308 193 459 5,149
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia B e - 1,680 124 78 459 2,31
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam PERLE - 1,632 520 75 459 2,686
Mr. YIN Mark Fil k4 - 1,460 120 56 459 2,095
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRXEE - 1,632 120 75 459 2,286

Independent non-executive ~ BIFRTEE

directors
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EEREL 363 - - - 188 551
Mr. MIAO Gengshu BfELE 360 - - - 188 548
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BBELAE 297 - - - 188 485
Non-executive director FHRITEE
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael PBELEE 153 - - - 188 341
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 28 EERFIRAXZ)
Notes: (continued) Bz - (&
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued) () EERERTHBHMZ)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BE—_SSNE+-_A=+—HItEE -
December 2009 is set out below: SEREEMEMOT
Employer's
Salaries, contribution
allowances  Discretionary to pension
Name of director Fees and benefits bonuses scheme Total
E2 A= L1 RIRE 2
HEA ik RAE# migRe B4 s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Executive directors BITES
Mr. CHAN Shing PRI - 4,936 480 211 5,627
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EERAE - 2,275 280 105 2,660
Mr. YANG Dawei BAREE - 583 - - 583
Ms. LAU Ting 2Lt = 4,364 5 185 4,549
Ms. TUNG Pui Shan, Virginia kb 2 1,607 247 74 1,928
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam BEFREE - 1,560 620 72 2,252
Mr. YIN Mark FITEE & 1,326 = 50 1,376
Mr. SHAM Kai Man (Note (i) SRBUCEE(H12() - 700 - 32 732
Independent non-executive  WIFHRTEE
directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERAE 363 = = - 363
Mr. MIAO Gengshu EHHELE 360 - - - 360
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BEBRELE 265 - - - 265
Non-executive director EHITEE
Mr. SZE Tsai Ping, Michael LEFRE 120 - - - 120
Note: Bt
(i)  Appointed on 20 July 2009. ) MRZZETNFLA=TBEZE:-

(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 hfuRSFHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rEREERSHMNAUALEERL
Group for the year include five (2009: five) directors whose (ZZEZNE : A ES - MR EE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. ENXERADITH R
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R e IS AR MY RE

29 FINANCE COSTS 29 MERF
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
Interest on: A
— Bank borrowings wholly —RAFREHIEE
repayable within five years HIERITE X 42,753 27,710
— Other loans —HEpER 30 418
— Finance lease liabilities —-MEHEEARE 68 102
42,851 28,230
Less: amounts capitalised on W BNMEREEREE
qualifying assets et (3,200) =
39,651 28,230
30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 30 PR8It

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Subsidiaries of
the Group in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China enterprise income tax ranging from 20% to
25% (2009: 12.5% to 25%) on their taxable income
determined according to Mainland China tax laws.
Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r& 2

30

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 30

The amount of taxation recognised in the consolidated
income statement represents:

R Eo R

FRig#ZH (&)
b_/\liT T E%ﬁﬁu«beﬂiﬁDT

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current tax REFIE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEF 500 960
— Mainland China taxation — B R F 18 3,009 615
— Overseas taxation —GHNEIIE 307 ¥
3,816 5575
Adjustments in respect of VAR S 2
prior years
— Hong Kong profits tax — BRI/ 2,571 3,480
— Mainland China taxation — R IA 168 (82)
— Overseas taxation —/BHNEIR 9 =
2,748 3,398
Deferred income tax relating to the iEIEFTSE 2 AF
origination and reversal ERMEL
of temporary differences K EE (o] 15,829 7,428
Income tax expense Fr8#i sz i 22,393 12,401

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

AREE RGPS AR F] 2 PR ER
ERAARAALTERZBEMAEZ

tax rate of the home country of the Company as follows: HTRE =R
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BT T
Profit before income tax % P18 4 Bif & A 586,657 20,065
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% IZF = 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) (ZZZNF : 16.5%)5tE 96,798 3,310
Effect of different taxation rates  E T ER A EH X
in other countries A= 5,965 2,840
Income not subject to taxation ERRB 2 WA (90,045) (2,668)
Expenses not deductible for IRk
taxation purposes ZXH 5,758 3,531
Unrecognised tax loss RIERTIE 3,561 3,493
Adjustments in respect of prior years LART4F [ 785 2,748 3,398
Recognition of previously TERERIARETER
unrecognised temporary il
differences =5 a2 431
Utilisation of previously FRREAIRARER
unrecognised tax losses ZFiiE (440) (3,801)
Others He (1,952) 1,867
Tax charge A 22,393 12,401
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31

32

33

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$627,198,000
(2009: a loss of approximately HK$8,078,000).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share are calculated
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders

of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

fre MR T

31

32

FATHBFTARGERT

ERAR R RR R 2 AR FIERS
A AL Z T2 4978 % 627,198,000
TT(ZEZTNF : FHI84E 18,078,000
JC) °

SREF(5E)

BEXRilE
BREARBEERF (BB REAA

AR ARGRT(BE) - BIX
FACRTEBRIMEFSEBE -

2010 2009

Profit/(Loss) attributable to AKArEFEEA

equity holders of the Company FE(E &R, (&)

(HK$'000) (B¥TT) 549,444 (4,646)
Weighted average number BEITE R

of ordinary shares in issue INHEF 98

(thousands) &= 4,183,123 3,164,937
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) EREALEERFN

per share (HK cents per share) (B18) (=FREN) 13.13 (0.15)

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 December 2009. The outstanding
share options have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2010.

DIVIDENDS

On 21 January 2010, the shareholders at the special
general meeting passed the ordinary resolution in
relation to the distribution in specie of shares in an
associate, China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (“CLS"),
on the basis of 9 CLS shares for every 20 shares of the
Company held. A total of 1,540,023,984 CLS shares
with an aggregate market value of approximately
HK$639,110,000 were recognised as distribution during
the year ended 31 December 2010. The distribution
has resulted in a gain on distribution in specie of shares
of CLS of approximately HK$501,897,000 which was
recognised in consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
Nil).
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B2

R-FE—ZEF—A_+—H BENUE
¥ 72 3\ I 3% B & A 7] China LotSynergy
Holdings Limited (£ & =R AR 2~ &)
([#EF DBz E@ramE PRI ERE
FIREERREARB - DIRZEREE
20 AR R RI R (D AT QMR ZE LR D 2 &
AE o £ 3£1,540,023,984 K EZ D - 4
B4 A5%639,110,000 TR AEE
EReEiE s IS e B [FREE
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operations

ial Statements 42 & B 7R R M =

34 wREReRERME

(a) EHEFAMBRS

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT BB
Profit for the year FEEEAN 564,264 7,664
Adjustments for: S
~ Tax R 22,393 12,401
- Depreciation —inE 11,976 12,129
- Amortisation — 85 5,584 424
— Gains on disposal of land use rights — — Hi & 35 F#E 2 % 7l (4,787) -
— Losses/(Gains) on disposal of —HEME  BERZE
property, plant and equipment B8,/ (&F) 2,014 (675)
— Share option expenses —BREXH 9,548 =
— Fair value gains on investment —REMENATE
properties Iz (62,866) (39,085)
- Fair value gains on financial —BATEERBERIIR
assets at fair value through MR BEE 2 A TE
profit or loss Wzs (1,039) (17,202)
- Fair value gains on other —-HeHBEEs AT E
financial assets Wz (34,840) v
— Gain on distribution of — DB A F
shares in an associate [ arapivil (501,897) &
— Impairment of intangible assets —BREERE = 130
- Dividends received from financial — R A FEER
assets at fair value through Ba5IRME 5
profit or loss BERS (12) (106)
— Interest income — il B U A (804) (2,509)
— Finance costs — BB R 39,651 28,230
— Share of (profits)/losses of associates —Ff{aEt R 7l (BF|) /& (7,653) 18,932
- Effect of foreign exchange rate — JNEE [ R )
changes 2 4,581 (786)
46,113 19,547
Changes in working capital: LEESHE
— Inventories -FE (171,973) 42,768
- Bills and accounts receivable —EWER K EWRIRIE (56,383) (101,617)
- Deposits, prepayments and other —&&  BAREET
receivables & 71,468 (303,792)
- Due from an associate . VNIV 1,751 =
— Due from a related company —BERRIRR (1,751) -
— Due to associates — RESE N FFIA (24,079) 2
- Due to related companies — REBENEF0E 24,079 =
- Bills and accounts payable —ERNRBERENIRE (7,285) 28152
— Other payables and accruals —HeEMIRBRESER 25,673 (57,114)
Cash used in operations LEMANRS (92,387) (377,056)
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34 EoaREeERERMEZ)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents (b) RMERBRLEEMRERDIF
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT
Cash at bank and in hands RITREFRE 189,123 254,812

Short-term bank deposits with  RIFzHA =18 A
original maturity of less than AN 2 52 BRERAT

three months TR 184,980 11,124
374,103 265,936
Less: Pledged bank deposits B IR ERITIE X (2,335) -
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (955) =
370,813 265,936
35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 RiERBARKR
(a) Capital commitments (a) BFRIE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Contracted but not provided BEE KBRS
— Property, plant and equipment —#)% - #22 K &4 14,475 -
(b) Operating lease commitments - where the (b) BEHERE-—FTEEEREA
Group is the lessee
At 31 December 2010, the Group had future NEZE—ZFF F=A=t-H:i&
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- ERE DA 2 2 EHEMRAR
cancellable operating leases as follows: BRIz HEBE N RBREET -
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT
Not later than one year B —F 297 990
Later than one year and not — &%
later than five years BTHBBRSE 179 144
Over five years fiEepic Ak 106 -
582 1,134
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Operating leases — where the Group is the ()
lessor

At 31 December 2010, the Group had future
minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

35 RIERBREF(E)

BEHER-ZRER/HEA

R-F—FF+-A=+—8 &
SERBETATREEN S EHEMR
ARERWE 2 HRIEBERIBLEN
N &

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Not later than one year TiEBE—F 18,622 14,317
Later than one year and not BiE—F

later than five years BB BRF 58,306 12,879

Over five years b Ak 5,715 -

82,643 27,196

Contingent-based rents recognised in the
consolidated income statement were approximately
HK$3,173,000 (2009: HK$ 2,421,000).

REEBRRERNKAESH5
83 173,000 ( Z B2 AE - 7B
#2,421,0007T) °

Corporate guarantees (d) 2TF)IERE
2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Guarantee for general B E N RRITRE
banking facilities granted {EH 2 R
to an associate 13,800 224157310
Guarantees given to banks for ASBEWMEREE
mortgage facilities granted BRIBE M MERTT
to the buyers of the Group's EH Z 1R
properties 90 86
13,890 21,816

In the opinion of the directors, no material liabilities
will arise from the above guarantees which arose in
the ordinary course of business and the fair value of
the corporate guarantees granted by the Group is
immaterial.

EERR - DRBERR —KREKB
BRPTEELBAREE  MAKHE
PR A BIER 2 D ERD -
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35

36

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(e) Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

At 31 December 2009, the Group had commitment
in respect of outstanding forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to buy a maximum amount of
US dollar of 39,234,000 against Hong Kong dollar
and a maximum amount of US dollar of 13,000,000
against Renminbi.

(f) Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s contingent

liabilities relating to Mainland China land

appreciation tax amounted to approximately
HK$29,305,000 (2009: HK$30,009,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of
control

During the year, the Group's disposal of 20% of its
interest in Burwill Resources Spain, S.A. reduced its
continuing interest to 70%. The proceed on disposal was
approximately HK$152,000. An amount of approximately
HK$94,000 (being the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of Burwill Resources
Spain, S.A.) has been transferred to non-controlling
interests. The difference of approximately HK$58,000
between that amount and the consideration received has
been credited to retained profits.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

During the year, the Group acquired an additional
30% of the issued shares of Burwill Metal Limited for
a purchase consideration of HK$30. An amount of
approximately HK$7,000 has been recognised by the
Group.
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36

RiERERARE)

(e) EHIMESH

R-EENFE+_A=+—8' ' &
EEARBITHRIBINES LEIES

% /BRE A 39,234,000 T 78T
N & % Z8 88 A\ 13,000,000 7T #f A
R#& o

(f) HMAAR

R-BE—ZTF+-_HA=+—H ' &
EEEBEPE T HIEERNKAE
B4 %29,305000t(Z T
£ : 7B 30,009,0007T) °

HIFERERXS

H & — R B 2 B Z a3 R 8 HE H

RER - RNEBUAK R 152,0007THE
E 7 Burwill Resources Spain, S.A. 20%
BRAEZ  BPOHBRTERETO% °
# 78 % 94,000 7T ( 12 Lt Il & 14 Burwill
Resources Spain, S.A. Z F& EIREE)E
WEER S IR - 2o BmEE K
Bz =EHBE58,000L Bt AR
&R o

MARBAR#IMER

RER - AEELABEI0TABENRE
B ABurwill Metal LimitedZ84h30% 2 2
BEITRAD o #4978 H57,000 T B AR EE B
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

On 31 March 2010, the Group acquired 51%
interest in Tai Xin Minerals Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
consideration was satisfied by the payment
of HK$260,000,000 in cash and the issue of
685,700,000 new shares (“Consideration Shares”)
by the Company to Tai Xin Investment Limited
and Tai Xin Holdings Limited (as “vendor”). The
subsidiaries of Tai Xin Minerals Limited own
iron ore mines in the Shandong Province, China.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 27 January 2010.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill were as
follows:

AR e MRS AR Y RE

37 ¥¥a6t

(a)

R —FF=H=F—=H8 -
AEBEWETREBEZHES T
fit BX 32 2z 2 & Tai Xin Minerals
Limited 89 51% # &1 o KB A B
260,000,000 T3 & R A A & &
7T ¥ Tai Xin Investment Limited A
Tai Xin Holdings Limited ([ & 77 |)
685,700,000 A% # A& 17 ([ X 1B AR
5 1)t Tai Xin Minerals Limited
2 [ A Bl P B L R A W A s
- WENEEERBEHIRE
—EE—A -+t HAARRRRK -

WiREEFEMBEFBET

HK$'000
BT T
Purchase consideration: WHERAE -
Cash paid AN 260,000
Shares issued at fair value BAFEETZRG 479,990
Contingent consideration HARE (314,867)
4255248
Fair value of net assets acquired W EEFE 2 A FE
— shown as below — W NI (66,202)
Goodwill EES 358,921
Acquisition-related costs (included in WEEEER(ERREE_Z—TF
general and administrative expenses S E) = Bl
in the consolidated income statement MEBERN—MRK&
for the year ended 31 December 2010) THRERA) 5,298
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 37 EES6~E)
(@) (continued) (@ #&)

The assets and liabilities as of 31 March 2010 arising R-ZE—ZTF=A=+—H gl

from the acquisition were as follows: BELACEENBEBNOT
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
WUEEAZ
NFEE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
ST IT BT T
Property, plant and equipment 2 - #2323 R 1E 3,963 148, 41
Intangible assets B EE (1954175 13,727
Deferred income tax assets RS EE 3,909 3,208,
Inventories FE i 744 7204
Accounts receivable FEY IR TE 391 391
Deposits, prepayments and Ze  BENREEE
other receivables T 20,389 20,389
Cash and bank balances L NIRTTEES 1412 {2
Borrowings B (11,199) (11,199)
Accounts payable FEATIRIE (1,517) (170,
Other payables and accruals HEERMRERETER (37,091) (37,091)
Provision for land restoration THE R RIRIBAC A
and environmental costs B (1,674) (1,674)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEFHREE (45,362) -
Net assets BEFH 129,807 3,869
Non-controlling interests IEIZE AR M 2 63,605
Net assets acquired I & EEF 5 66,202
Purchase consideration settled  LAIR & v 2 U &
in cash KRB 260,000
Deposit paid for acquisition U BE BT 8 7]
of subsidiaries e (78,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in Rk B AR 2 RE
subsidiaries acquired KB e EEY (1,112)
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEEE 2B e 180,888
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The fair value of the 685,700,000 ordinary shares
issued as part of the consideration paid to the
vendor was based on the published share price on
31 March 2010.

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement of Tai
Xin Minerals Limited, the vendor has irrevocably
and unconditionally undertaken and guaranteed
to Burwill Minerals Limited (as “purchaser”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) that the
net profit as reflected in the audited consolidated
financial statements of Tai Xin Minerals Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2010 would
not be less than HK$120,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). The vendor has also entered into a share
pledge with the purchaser in favour of the purchaser
such that in the event that the Guaranteed Profit
was not met, the purchaser would have the right to
deal with or dispose of the Consideration Shares,
on the basis of eight Consideration Shares for every
HK$1 of shortfall. The fair value of contingent
consideration arrangement of approximately
HK$314,867,000 was estimated by applying market
value approach.

As of 31 December 2010, there was an increase of
approximately HK$34,840,000 recognised in the
consideration income statement for the contingent
consideration arrangement and the fair value
of contingent consideration arrangement was
approximately HK$349,707,000.

AR e MRS AR Y RE

37 ¥¥Bet#E)

(a)

EASHNEFNITMHNREMETT
685,700,000 % I 18 i% f% 19 7 A
EBENRER T ZTF=A=+—
B2 B AMmARE -

R #ETai Xin Minerals Limitedi%{) &
Efpe  EHFETARE - EIEG
3, 18 Burwill Minerals Limited ([ B
F(BARRzZ2EWB AR
% NARTE 0 Tai Xin Minerals Limited
HE—ZT- - ZTEL+=H=+—H
T BRFERLEZEE P BHRE
BT I Bk 2 % BRI g D A S
120,000,0007T([fRFE&A]]) « BEF5
MELERRERS - BEMAREE
EYRBRNE B BBERERE
S ERERD @ FIEEERES
BITEReRE \BRRERSD -
FAREBLZHENATFEZTHER
H AL A7E314,867,0007T °

TS T P e e
RAEBERPERMLIMA KA
RAB &2 Bk 49 75 ¥ 34,840,000 7T °
REARELEEZ R FEL BB
349,707,0007T °
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Goodwill arising from acquisition of Tai Xin Minerals
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Tai Xin Group”) was
attributable to the anticipated profitability and
future development of Tai Xin Group in the mining
business and the anticipated future operating
synergy from the business combination.

Tai Xin Group contributed revenue of approximately
HK$36,720,000 and net loss of approximately
HK$3,527,000 to the Group for the period from the
date of acquisition to 31 December 2010. Tai Xin
Group had no sales for the period from 1 January
2010 to the date of acquisition.

Had Tai Xin Group been consolidated from 1 January
2010, the consolidated income statement would
show revenue of approximately HK$6,080,074,000
and profit of approximately HK$596,780,000.

On 26 May 2010, the Group acquired Allied Gold
Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong, through Tai Xin Minerals Limited. The
subsidiary of Allied Gold Corporation Limited is
engaged in the mining business in China.

Details of net liabilities acquired and goodwill were
as follows:

4= A

A mRNE

37 ¥¥Bet#E)

(a)

U BETai Xin Minerals Limited Kz ZBft
BRRI([ &8 EAZEES
FeEERNREER 2 TERRT
N RARRERIARFE S FTEHE
7 B E R R o

BKRERASHE-_T—Z=TF+_H
=+—HHME - %%%;%@7,%2!&;%@
5 BN 25 #4975 %5 36,720,0007T ¢ E
@Eﬁaiﬁxﬂngmooﬁ: B
EEEN_ZT—ZTF—A—AHA=EK
ﬁ%a,ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁ% °
ZZDBA —STE— A HEERS
,iv?é\.)\fpﬁ A ERRE
/T\E’Juﬁzmm,%ﬁ%,oso,074,000ﬁ&
B 4975 %596,780,0007T °

RZE—ZTFRA-t+B K&
B 48 Tai Xin Minerals Limited 4 8
TE%H%WIZ@E%@%@@
c BEBHR AR ZHBRRNF
l%%%ﬁ%%

WiEREFEMAEHBET

HK$'000
BT
Purchase consideration: IWEERA(E -
Cash paid AN &
Fair value of net liabilities acquired e EFE s ATE
— shown as below — AN XA 1,079
Goodwill eSS 1,079
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

37 XBStHE)

(b) (continued) (b)y (%)
The assets and liabilities as of 26 May 2010 arising R-E—ZFTEFA-—+"B Bk
from the acquisition were as follows: BELAZEAERBEWT :
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
WSS Z
NFEE R =
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT IT ST T
Property, plant and equipment  ¥73 - #2383 M RE 6,810 6,810
Inventories FE 1,891 1,891
Deposits, prepayments and &  BEREET
other receivables FEM R 36,867 36,867
Cash and bank balances BE MIBTES 50 50
Borrowings BR (45,252) (45,252)
Accounts payable FEIIRIE (1,445) (1,445)
Net liabilities BEFHE (1,079) (1,079)
Purchase consideration settled  LAIR & Sz~ 2 W bE
in cash RE S
Cash and cash equivalents in Bk B AR 2R &
subsidiaries acquired FEREEEY 50
Cash inflow on acquisition WIEEE ZHESRA 50

Goodwill arising from acquisition of Allied Gold
Corporation Limited and its subsidiary (“Allied
Gold Group) was attributable to the anticipated
profitability and future development of Allied Gold
Group in the mining business and the anticipated
future operating synergy from the business
combination.

Allied Gold Group contributed no revenue and net
loss of approximately HK$840,000 to the Group
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2010. Allied Gold Group had no sales
for the period from 1 January 2010 to the date of
acquisition.

Had Allied Gold Group been consolidated
from 1 January 2010, the consolidated income
statement would show revenue of approximately
HK$6,080,074,000 and profit of approximately
HK$563,743,000.

WERSERQAAREKERF
(BReEBELCHEREEE
EVSARIE D A LR P PANSER
RERANEGAHBHMEL ZH
BE LR o

BlEARE_—_ZT—ZE+ 4
=+—HHE  BeSKETEAR
SEE R - EEFBELBE
840,000 - R &EER =T —F
F— R —HEUWEE B HRHAR I A
£ o

MR —E—ZF—A—HEBBES
SEEAANIR @ EREBEERATZE
TRHYUES 4975 #56,080,074,0007T K
B %78 8563,743,0007T °
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38 CHARGE ON ASSETS 38 HEEH

At 31 December 2010, the following assets were NR-FE—FTF+—A=+—H ' UTE

pledged: EETHEM :

(@) Certain leasehold land, land use rights and (@) EPHEELH - THFAERES
buildings with a net book amount of approximately IR E(E 478 %101,027,0007T (=
HK$101,027,000 (2009: HK$141,338,000); T NE : HE¥141,338,0007T) ;

(b) Certain motor vehicles and machinery with net book (b) 2P {p B2 o K # 22 IR M /(B 4 78 B
amounts of approximately HK$4,507,000 (2009: 4,507,000 C( T L F : B
HK$4,577,000); 4,577,0007T)

(c) Certain investment properties of approximately () BPHILE W EA B 647,473,000
HK$647,473,000 (2009: HK$550,613,000); and T(ZZETNEF : #%550,613,000

7T &k

(d) Certain short-term bank deposits of approximately (d) B rEEASRITIE X4 2,335,000

HK$2,335,000 (2009: Nil). T SRR G )
39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 MEAXSH

Parties are considered to be related if one has the BB RE AL IR hEEEE

ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party T B—7 KGN E — 2B

or exercise significant influence over the other party in &%«g,;gk’”ﬂ;igij( BN AT A

making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also M E AN T2 B s E A

considered to be related if they are subject to common %Z/\ij*&ﬁ{f@g AL o

control or common significant influence.

(a) Related party transactions which were carried out (a) REE MEEKINETZBE
in the normal course of the Group’s business are as B N
follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT ST I
Rental income received from AN
associates HEUWA 3,135 2 A7
Service income received from e =N
an associate AR UL A 444 375
Sales to associates $HE T HE & AR 3,010 2,188
Sale of motor vehicles to HETE T
an associate /NG = 600
Purchase from an associate mEtE A REE 42,019 22,925
Rental expense paid to BB E A A
an associate LR 40 672
Rental expense paid to BETEEER A
a related party ikl b3 216 iz
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation to key management personnel

39 RERRH(E)

(b) EEEEBARHME

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Wages and salaries HeIE& 20,350 17,870
Pension costs — defined BRIREKA — R E

contribution plans HETE 808 729

Staff welfare 8 T H 492 1,108

Employee share option benefits & 8 B X AE & 7 3,401 &

25,051 19,707

(c) Details of loan to a director of the Company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

() REBEAREHIE161BIERMARER
REEER BT

Name of borrower

tERALES

Position

4w

Terms of the loan
BB

— interest rate

— R

— security

—

— repayment term

—BREH

— borrowing date

—f&%A

Balance of loan in respect of principal and interest

ERAE KA S &R

YIN Mark
Fir

Executive Director

HITES

4% per annum
FEME

unsecured

f A 3

4 years

usfes

26 March 2008
—2EEN\F=A=+H

— at 31 December 2009 HK$586,000
—-RZZEEANF+=ZA=+—H 75 1586,0007T
—at 31 December 2010 HK$391,000
—-RZE—ZTF+=-A=1+—H 781391,0007T
Maximum balance outstanding during the year HK$586,000
FNIRE KRR 7B 1£586,0007T
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40 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 40 HEHHAKEEIR

Pursuant to the top-up placing and subscription
agreement dated 21 February 2011 and the supplemental
agreement dated 24 February 2011, the Company
allotted and issued 460,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.48
each to Glory Add Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, on 4 March 2011 following completion
of the top-up placing of an aggregate of 460,000,000
existing shares to not less than six independent investors
at a placing price of HK$0.48 each. A net proceeds of
approximately HK$214 million raised was used for the
expansion of mineral resources and as general working
capital of the Group.

174 Annual Report 2010 F 3k

BE-_E——F_A-_+—HZxE®R
FTRERRERER T ——F A
Z B ZERGE  WEIEGRE
048 TR EETENCERNMEES
460,000,000% 378 D T LR E
BUIEENE  ARFER=ZE——
F= AN BZRSREEE0.48 TR RIBE
Fit 3 }% %% 17 460,000,000 A% 78 2 7] 3 &
BRE R D F A A A £ Z YR Glory Add
Limited ° TS RIR S REX) B K2 1418 7T
REARSEREERESERR —KE
BESD -



© reresnss

Schedule of Properties held for Investment &M E—E X

Address
Mo dt

537 Wenchang Road Central,
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China

PELTERE

T

X 2R E&53755%

Lease

HWER

Medium lease

REIRRAY

Group’s

Existing use interest
RTHE SEHER
Commercial 69%

[SES
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Five Years' Financial Summary 1 F 8 7 &

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AREBBERETBRFEEZEE  BENE
financial years are as follows: BT

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERETT BT BETT BETT BETT

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(i2=351) (iE5) (mE5) (iE5)

Results £
Sales HE 6,080,074 3,256,714 8,334,596 5,452,012 4,793,364
Gross profit EF 156,753 97,754 223,221 143,233 82,072
Operating profit L= 116,758 67,227 215,547 120,539 223,680
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: B/ (EE)GER
Equity holders of the Company AR A EREE A 549,444 (4,646) (148,808) 86,307 149,380
Non-controlling interests IR 14,820 12,310 43,905 8,964 2,295
564,264 7,664 (104,903) 95,271 151,675
Assets and liabilities ZERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,908,966 1,206,860 994,984 960,434 800,609
Current assets MEEE 2,502,844 1,891,420 1,669,053 1,675,757 1,653,449
Total assets BEE 4,411,810 3,098,280 2,664,037 2,636,191 2,454,058
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 550,719 398,352 98,078 56,263 152,895
Current liabilities mEEE 1,599,825 1,111,877 1,096,638 1,327,960 1,296,944
Total liabilities BafkE 2,150,544 1,510,229 1,194,716 1,384,223 1,449,839
Total equity i 2,261,266 1,588,051 1,469,321 1,251,968 1,004,219
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